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March 1, 2024

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Plainview:

The City of Plainview’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the year ended
September 30, 2023 is hereby submitted. This report consists of management’s representations
concerning the finances of the City of Plainview. Consequently, management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report.
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of
Plainview has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City of Plainview’s financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the City of Plainview’s comprehensive framework of internal controls
has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The City of Plainview’s financial statements have been audited by Bolinger, Segars, Gilbert &
Moss, L.L.P., a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit
was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Plainview for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, are free of material misstatement. The independent
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
rendering an unmodified opinion that the City of Plainview’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2023, are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Plainview’s MD&A
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government
The City of Plainview, incorporated in 1907, is located on the Central Plains of Northwest Texas,

46 miles north of Lubbock and 75 miles south of Amarillo. The City of Plainview is the County
seat of Hale County, one of the most intensively farmed counties in the state with crops



irrigated from water produced from the Ogallala Aquifer. Cotton is the major crop. Other crops
include corn, soybeans, sorghum, wheat, peanuts, vegetables, as well as, dairy cows, swine,
sheep, and beef cattle production. The City of Plainview is the agribusiness, financial and
transportation center of this highly developed farming area.

The City of Plainview currently occupies a land area of 13 square miles and serves a population
of 20,187. The City of Plainview is empowered to levy tax on both real and personal properties
located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its corporate
limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing
council.

The City of Plainview, a home rule city, has operated under the council-manager form of
government since 1964. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council
consisting of the mayor and seven other members. The governing council is responsible, among
other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring
both the government’s manager and attorney. The government’s manager is responsible for
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day
operations of the government, and for appointing the heads of various departments. The
council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year staggered terms
with four members elected every two years. The mayor is elected at large, and the other seven
members are elected by district.

City Services

The City of Plainview provides a full range of services. These services include police and fire
protection, maintenance of streets and infrastructure, emergency medical service, parks and
recreation, cultural events, library, health, vector control, zoning, code administration, building
inspection, and general administrative services.

The City of Plainview also provides utility services which include water supply and distribution,
storm water, wastewater collection and treatment, and solid waste collection and disposal.

Financial Information

The City of Plainview’s accounting records for general government operations are maintained on
a modified accrual basis, with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable and
expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities are
incurred. Accounting records for the City’s utilities and other proprietary activities are
maintained on the accrual basis.

Annual Budget. The City charter provides that the City Council shall adopt the annual budget by
the passage of a budget ordinance. This budget, prepared by City management, is reviewed by
the City Council subsequent to a public hearing. The City Manager may transfer budgeted
amounts among programs within a department or major organizational unit; however, any
revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.

Budgetary control has been established at the individual fund level. Financial reports are
produced displaying budget and actual expenditures by line item, and are available monthly to



City departmental and divisional management and to others upon request. Summary financial
reports for the operating funds are also displayed on the website.

Individual line items are reviewed and analyzed for budgetary compliance. Personnel
expenditures are monitored and controlled at a position level and capital expenditures are
monitored and controlled item by item. Revenue projections are reviewed monthly.

Cash management. The City of Plainview awards its depository contract through official bidding
procedures for a three-year period with a provision for two one-year continuations under the
same contract. The current contract is with Happy State Bank a division of Centennial Bank
commencing October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2024 with the option for two one-year
renewals.

The current contract with Happy State Bank a division of Centennial Bank is indexed to the 13-
week T-Bill rate plus 25 basis points on all funds placed in any account in the bank with a floor of
25 basis points. Idle cash is placed in certificates of deposit and TexPool. At the end of the first
quarter of the current fiscal year the City held only $113.6 thousand in investments with an
average maturity of 39 days and an average yield of 5.37%. Typically, this is much larger but
with the rising interest rate environment funds were not invested, but kept in the interest-
bearing checking accounts.

It is the City of Plainview’s policy that all demand deposits and time deposits be secured by
pledged collateral or other approved instruments with a market value equal to no less than
102% of the deposits less an amount insured by FDIC. Evidence of the pledged collateral is
maintained by the finance department and a third-party financial institution. The finance
department retains the irrevocable letters of credit, if applicable. Collateral and irrevocable
letters of credit are reviewed monthly by the finance staff to assure the market value of the
securities pledged and the letters of credit are adequate.

All safekeeping arrangements are in accordance with a safekeeping agreement approved by the
City Manager which defines the procedural steps for gaining access to pledged collateral on
deposit should the City of Plainview determine that the City’s funds are in jeopardy. The
safekeeping institution, or Custodian’s, are Federal Home Loan Bank and TIB-The Independent
Bankers Bank. The safekeeping agreement is a three-party contract between the City of
Plainview, the depository bank, and the Custodian. Additional information on the City’s banking
and investing activities can be found in Note 2 of the financial statements.

Risk management. The City of Plainview has joined together with other governmental agencies
in the State as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML-IRP)
for insurance coverage. The City pays an annual premium for coverage of worker’s
compensation liability, general liability, law enforcement liability, errors and omissions liability,
auto liability, and property damage. The City of Plainview is generally self-insured for physical
damage to vehicles. Additional information on the City’s risk management activities can be
found in Note 13 of the financial statements.

Employee health plan. The City of Plainview provides health insurance for employees, their
dependents and retirees and their dependents who are not eligible for Medicare or Medicaid.
On January 1, 2015 the city switched from being self-insured to a fully insured health plan.



On October 1, 2017 the City adopted GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB). This requires the City to report the
cost and obligations associated with providing retirees access to the City’s health insurance plan.
The OPEB liability measured at December 31, 2022 was $776,632.

Additional information on the City’s health coverage can be found in Notes 10 and 11 of the
financial statements.

Pension benefits. The City participates in two retirement plans. Firefighters are provided benefits
through the City’s single employer defined benefit pension plan and all other employees are
provided benefits through a non-institutional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in
the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS).

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, during the year ended September 30, 2015, which
requires recognition of its net pension liability and a more comprehensive measure of pension
expense.

The Firefighters Retirement System is administered by a board of trustees. The actuarial
valuation for the System was completed as of December 31, 2021. The funded ratio of actuarial
accrued liability of this plan was 43.6%. As a matter of policy, the City contributed 15% of
firefighter salaries toward pension financing, while firefighters individually contributed 14%.
Effective January 1, 2017 the firefighters contribute 15%. In an effort to strengthen the
Firefighter Pension Plan the City has instituted a series of increases to the employer’s
contributions. October 1, 2010 the city increased the employer portion to 16.61%; October 1,
2011 to 18.26%; October 1, 2012 to 19.84%; October 1, 2013 to 21.45%; October 1, 2014 to
23.07%; October 1, 2015 to 24.68%; and June 2021 to 25%. The City contributed an additional
$1,250,000 to the plan in Fiscal Year 2021 and 2022 to help reduce the unfunded liability of the
plan. The fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability was 37.69% at
December 31, 2022.

Each year TMRS engages an independent actuary to study the plan and calculate the City's
required contribution. The last available study was completed as of December 31, 2022, and
reported the fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability was 91.63% at
December 31, 2022. The City’s contribution rate at year end was 11.18% of payroll and the
employees individually contribute 7%.

Additional information on the City’s pension arrangements and post-employment benefits can
be found in Note 9 of the financial statements and in the required supplementary information.

Long-term financial planning.
The City meets annually to review the implementation of the Strategic Plan, Comprehensive

Plan and evaluate the financial condition of the City. The City works to maintain a strong fund
balance in its operating funds and sets aside funds to address major infrastructure projects.



Economic Condition and Outlook

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the environment within which the City of Plainview
operates.

Local economy

Plainview is located in the South Plains Region that serves as one of the most productive
agricultural areas in the United States. The City serves as a small regional hub for employment
opportunities, retail trade, healthcare, education and government services.

Economic indicators including sales tax collections, hotel occupancy rates, construction activity
at the local level and regional level as well as the unemployment rate suggest that the Plainview
economy is stable.

Sales Tax. Sales Tax receipts through December 2023 are up by 15 percent over last year at the
this time.

Employment. The unemployment rate was 4.4 percent in December 2022 compared to 5.1
percent in December 2023.

Healthcare. Covenant Hospital Plainview, as part of the Covenant Health System and
Providence - St. Joseph Health System, serves as a small regional hub for medical care. The
hospital is a 100-bed facility with over 300 medical professionals providing a full range of
healthcare services.

Plainview Independent School District. Voters passed a bond proposition totaling $76.62 million
that includes two new elementary schools that opened Fall of 2022, renovations and expansion
of an existing elementary opened Fall of 2023 and renovations to the two Junior High buildings
that converted them into a 5"-6" grade intermediate campus and 7™-8™" grade junior high
campus. Both facilities opened in the Fall of 2022. There is early childhood and pre-kindergarten
programming at every elementary campus.

Higher Education. Wayland Baptist University (WBU), a four-year Christian university, has
system wide enrollment of over 4,100 students; this includes the main campus and 9 satellite
campuses located all over the United States. The main campus located in Plainview serves
approximately 1,100 students. In addition, WBU is home to the Mabee Regional Heritage
Center that houses the Llano Estacado Museum, Jimmy Dean Museum and the new Flying
Queens Museum. The Plainview campus has several major capital investments that include
renovations and additions to existing buildings.

South Plains College — Plainview Center is a part of the South Plains College System. Total
enrollment is over 300 students. The Center offers associate degrees, certification and skills
training in the medical field, cosmetology, industrial manufacturing, wind and solar energy,
welding, HVAC, electrical, plumbing, construction and other trades as well as customized
workforce development training courses for businesses.



TxDOT. The Texas Department of Transportation is planning to reconstruct State Highway 194
(Quincy Street) from Southwest 3™ Street to Interstate 27 in late 2024. The City is relocating
$3.2 million in water distribution lines along this major thoroughfare in cooperation with the
TxDOT.

Economic Development

The City works in partnership with Hale County, the Chamber of Commerce and the Plainview-
Hale County Economic Development Corporation to encourage business retention and
expansion, business recruitment and workforce development. Funding provided for economic
development activities is primarily through the City and County.

Business Park. The Plainview-Hale County Business Parks includes approximately 150 acres of
shovel ready sites for business and industrial development.

The City will be extending utilities from the Business Park to serve a major industrial customer
Martin Industries that is investing $75.0 million in partnership with Samsung and Dongjin.

The Walmart Distribution Center is planning a major investment in robotics technology along
with other major facility upgrades in Plainview.

Airport. The Plainview-Hale County Airport is a joint venture between the City and County. The
Fixed Based Operator is Trade Wind FBO LLC. The Airport has two major runways: Runway 4-22
(6,000 feet long) and Runway 13-31 (4,000 feet long). The City and County are starting the
programming and planning for the East Ramp Improvements and a new Terminal Building in
cooperation with TXDOT Aviation.

Green Energy. The City serves as a regional hub for wind and solar farm construction due to the
large rail distribution center operated by BNSF Logistics in Plainview.

Water Planning. The City, through its membership in the Canadian River Municipal Water
Authority (CRMWA), is in the planning process for more transmission lines to develop the
additional water rights purchased in 2011. This acquisition doubled the amount of groundwater
owned by CRMWA and available to its member cities including Plainview.

The City has completed a Long-Range Water Supply Plan that identifies water management
strategies over the next 50 years.

Water System Improvements. The City issued $10.0 million in Revenue Bonds to upgrade the
current water meter system to an Automatic Water Metering System. This project will include
the replacement of approximately 7,800 water meters. Accuracy in the metering system will
allow the City to better manage water usage and supplies to promote conservation as a part of
its long-term water planning strategy. Also, the additional revenue will be recaptured through
the increase in accuracy of the water meters that will support investments in the water system.

Street Improvements. The City is extending Mesa Drive, a major collector, from 16™ Street to
24%™ Street and 24™ Street, a major arterial road, to Andy Taylor Road. This street improvement
project is a road safety enhancement and an economic development investment. This area



along Interstate 27 was identified as most likely to experience growth over the next 20 years in
the Comprehensive Plan.

Downtown Revitalization. The City operates Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) in the
downtown. The City completed the Downtown Streetscape Project, Phase 1 on Broadway Street
in January 2022. Phase 2 construction will begin in the Fall of 2024.

2018 General Obligation Bond Program. In 2017, voters authorized $25.0 million in General
Obligations Bonds for various capital improvement projects. This included the reconstruction of
24 Street, construction of a new Fire Station No. 2, renovation of a facility to serve as the new
City Hall, renovation of the current City Hall facility to serve as the new Police Department,
improvements to the baseball-softball fields, construction of a new aquatic complex and
sidewalks improvements in the Downtown area. All of these projects were completed in 2023.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report and the maintenance of the records upon which it is based could
not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire Finance
Department. We would like to express our appreciation to the accounting staff members for
their insights and comments and to the independent auditors for their competent services.

In addition, we express our appreciation to the Mayor and members of the City Council for their
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Respectfully submitted,
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BOLINGER, SEGARS, GILBERT & Moss, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
PHONE: (806) 747-3806

FAX: (B80O6) 747-3815
8215 NASHVILLE AVENUE

LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79423-1954

Independent Auditor’s Report

Mayor and City Council
City of Plainview, Texas
Plainview, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Plainview, Texas,
as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Plainview, Texas’ basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Plainview, Texas, as of September 30, 2023, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the City of Plainview, Texas (the City) and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as
a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

-11 -



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedules of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, schedules of
employer contributions, schedule of changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios, and budgetary
information as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
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We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining statements and individual nonmajor
budgetary comparison schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
statements and individual nonmajor budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 15,
2024, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

ﬁ%/ ,Z,?W/ Lithert  PPloae KL P
Certified Public Accountants

Lubbock, Texas

March 15, 2024
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(IN THOUSANDS)

As management of the City of Plainview, Texas (the City) we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2023. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the letter
of transmittal, the independent auditor’s report, and the basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City of Plainview exceeded its liabilities on September 30, 2023 by $90,408 (net
position). Of this amount, the unrestricted net position increased by $447 from $39,227 to $39,674.

e The City’s total net position increased by $2,887 while the City’s total liabilities decreased by
$14,085.

e The City’s governmental funds combined ending fund balance is $21,031 of which $12,475 is
available for spending at the City’s discretion.

e The ending unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $12,475, or 76% of total general
fund revenues and 76% of total expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. These provide information about
the activities of the City as a whole and present a long-term view of the City's property and debt obligations
and other financial matters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar to the
financial reports of a business enterprise.

Fund financial statements report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements
by providing information about the City's most significant funds. For governmental activities, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what resources remain for future
spending. They reflect the flow of current financial resources and supply the basis for tax levies and the
appropriations budget. For proprietary activities, fund financial statements tell how goods or services of
the City were sold to departments within the City or to external customers and how the sales revenues
covered the expenses of the goods or services.

The notes to the financial statements provide narrative explanations or additional data needed for full

disclosure in the government-wide statements or the fund financial statements. This report also contains
other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.
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Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Position provides an analysis of the City's overall financial condition and operations.
The primary purpose of this analysis is to show whether the City is better or worse off as a result of the
year's activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all the City's assets and liabilities at the end of
the year while the Statement of Activities includes all the revenues and expenses generated by the City's
operations during the year. These apply the accrual basis of accounting which is the method used by most
private sector companies.

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received
or paid. The City's revenues are separated into two categories: those provided by outside parties who
share the costs of some programs, such as the Department of Transportation’s assistance in safe driving,
and revenues provided by the taxpayers. All the City's assets are reported whether they serve the current
year or future years. Liabilities are included regardless of whether they must be paid in the current or
future years.

These two statements report the City's net position and changes in them. The City's net position (the
difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources)
provide one measure of the City's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases
in the City's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To
fully assess the overall health of the City, however, you should consider other financial factors as well
(such as changes in the City's sales tax revenues or its property tax base) and non-financial factors (such
as the condition of the City's facilities, unemployment rates and population growth or decline).

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the following activities are presented.
e Governmental activities — Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, and recreation and parks. Property

taxes, sales taxes, user fees, and licenses and permits finance most of these activities.

o Business-type activities — The City accounts for business—type activities in its proprietary funds,
where user fees and charges are intended to recover all or a significant portion of overall costs.
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Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the City
as a whole. Laws and contracts require the City to establish certain funds to account for specific activities,
such as grants received through the state agencies. The City establishes other funds to help it control and
manage resources for particular purposes. The City's two kinds of funds — governmental and proprietary
— use different accounting approaches.

o Governmental funds — Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds. These
use modified accrual accounting (a method that measures the receipt and disbursement of cash
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) and report balances that are
available for future spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the City's general operations and the basic services it provides. We describe the differences
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation schedules following each of the fund financial
statements.

o Proprietary funds — The City reports the activities for which it charges users (whether outside
customers or other units of the City) in proprietary funds using the full accrual method, which is the
same accounting method employed in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and
short-term financial information.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information. The City of Plainview adopts an annual appropriated budget for its
general fund (major fund). A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for this fund to
demonstrate budgetary compliance.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The City of
Plainview’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded deferred inflows of resources and
liabilities by $90,408 at September 30, 2023.

The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
infrastructure, buildings, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire these assets that is still
outstanding. These assets are used to provide services to the citizens and are not available for future
appropriation. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Table |
City of Plainview, Texas

NET POSITION
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Assets:
Cash and Investments $ 31928 $§ 35509 $ 32,155 $ 21,718 $ 64,083 $ 57,227
Receivables 1,746 1,720 1,599 1,759 3,345 3,479
Other Assets 3,695 5,524 266 1,064 3,961 6,588
Capital Assets 37,930 34,456 41,699 39,653 79,629 74,109

Total Assets $ 75299 $ 77209 $ 75719 $ 64,194 $ 151,018 $ 141,403
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 4,438 $ 2,126 $ 1,361 $ 629 $ 5799 $ 2,755
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities $ 5,088 $ 7,021 § 2,185 $ 1,066 $ 7273 $ 8,087
Long Term Liabilities 37,234 33,574 21,273 10,034 58,507 43,608

Total Liabilities $ 42322 $§ 40595 $ 23458 $ 11,100 $ 65780 $ 51,695
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 629 $ 3,767 $ 0 $ 1,175 $ 629 $ 4,942
Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets $ 16504 $ 15430 $ 32,831 $ 31,602 $ 49335 §$§ 47,032

Restricted 1,399 1,262 1,399 1,262

Unrestricted 18,883 18,281 20,791 20,946 39,674 39,227

Total Net Position $ 36,786 $ 34973 $ 53622 $ 52,548 $ 90,408 $ 87,521

The City has restricted net position totaling 1.5% of total net position, which represents resources subject
to restrictions on how they may be used. Such resources include special revenue funds restricted for
specific purposes.

There was an overall increase of $2,303 in net investment in capital assets, with capital assets in
governmental activities increasing by $1,074 and capital assets in business-type activities increasing by
$1,229. The net investment in capital assets for the primary government has increased due to more capital
additions compared to depreciation being taken.
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Table Il
City of Plainview, Texas

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 1,129 $ 1,110 $§ 12,013 § 12,497 $ 13,142 $ 13,607
Operating Grants and Contributions 983 560 12 995 560
Capital Grants and Contributions 759 454 759 454
General Revenues
Property Taxes 8,068 7,510 8,068 7,510
Other Taxes 7,764 7,058 7,764 7,058
Capital Contributions 45 126 45 126
Other 2,018 473 1,301 316 3,319 789
Total Revenues $ 20,766 $ 17,291 $ 13,326 § 12,813 $ 34,092 $ 30,104
Expenses:
General Government $ 3,481 $ 2619 $ $ $ 3,481 $ 2,619
Public Safety 10,720 8,161 10,720 8,161
Public Works 2,150 2,171 2,150 2,171
Health 1,017 743 1,017 743
Recreation and Culture 2,074 1,733 2,074 1,733
Interest on Long Term Debt 733 813 226 733 1,039
Solid Waste Management 3,429 2,686 3,429 2,686
Water and Sewer 6,661 5,750 6,661 5,750
Other 413 476 527 51 940 527
Total Expenses $ 20,588 $ 16,716 $ 10,617 § 8,713 $ 31,205 $§ 25429
Increase in Net Position Before Transfers $ 178 $ 575 $ 2,709 $ 4100 $ 2887 $ 4,675
Transfers 1,635 1,720 (1,635) (1,720) 0 0
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ 1,813 $ 2,295 §$ 1,074 $ 2,380 $ 2,887 $ 4,675
Net Position-Beginning 34,973 32,678 52,548 50,168 87,521 82,846
Net Position-Ending $ 36,786 $ 34973 $ 53622 $ 52,548 $ 90,408 $ 87,521

Governmental Activities - Governmental activities resulted in an increase of $1,813 in the City’s net
position.

Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e Total revenues increased from $17,291 to $20,766 (20.01%).

e Taxable property valuations increased 106 million and the total tax rate decreased from .8518 to
.8165 per $100 valuation. The collection percentage of levy decreased 0.68% but there was an
increase of 7.43% in property tax revenue from $7,510 to $8,068.

e Other taxes increased in 2022-2023 by 10.00%. These include Sales Taxes, Franchise Taxes
and Occupancy Taxes.

e Total expenditures increased from $16,716 to $20,588 (23.16%).

e Transfers from the business-type activities decreased from $1,720 to $1,635 (4.94%)
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Revenues by Source
Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year 2022-23

Operating Grants and Property Taxes
Contributions 43%
3%

Charges for Services
6%

Other
4%

Capital Grants and
Contributions

3% Other Taxes
41%

Business-type Activities - Business-type activities increased the City of Plainview’s total net position by
$1,074 in the current fiscal year. Key elements of this increase are as follows.

Total revenues increased from $12,813 to $13,326 (4.00%).

Charges for services decreased from $12,497 to $12,013 (3.87%)

Transfers to governmental activities decreased from $1,720 to $1,635 (4.94%).
Total Expenditures increased from $8,713 to $10,617 (21.85%).
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Revenues by Source
Business-type Activities
Fiscal Year 2022-23

Charges for Services
98%

Miscellaneous
2%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

The City of Plainview uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. The GASB has defined five types of fund balances, which are more fully described
in the footnotes to the financial statements. The City uses the categories of fund balance as prescribed by
GASB.

As the City completed the 2022-23 year, its governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $21,031, representing a decrease of $1,473 from the prior year’s balance of $22,504. This is attributed
to the using bond funds related to capital projects.

The General Fund is the major operating fund of the City. Unassigned fund balance represents 76% of
total General Fund expenditures.

Total fund balance in the City’s General Fund increased by $1,573 during fiscal year 2022-23. The other
governmental funds realized a net decrease to fund balance of $3,047.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, the City was able to fill many of our vacant positions but with inflation saw increases in
our expenditures. There is still supply issues and many expenditures were delayed until the future when
the items could be obtained. As the year progressed actual receipts exceeded budgeted revenues and
expenditures were less than budgetary estimates, thus allowing the City Council to approve funds for
additional appropriations for interfund transfers.

Significant budget amendments during the year included the following additional appropriations and
interfund transfers:

e $675 Increase in Public Safety
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City of Plainview’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2023, amounts to $70,831 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, water and
sewer lines, subscription assets, and drainage improvements. The total City investment in capital assets
increased by $5,667 or 8.70%.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Infrastructure and Improvements increased by a net of $8,099 as street projects were completed
and put into operation.

e Buildings and Systems increased by a net of $7,338 mainly due to finishing the Fire and Police
Station projects.

e Construction in Progress of Business-Type Activities increased by $2,306 and governmental
activities decreased $13,635 as the City finished out using the proceeds of the capital project fund
in 2023.

e Machinery and Equipment increased by $1,333 mainly by new equipment purchases exceeding
retirements and depreciation in most departments.

e Land decreased by $8.

Table I
City of Plainview, Texas

CAPITAL ASSETS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
(Net of Depreciation and Amortization, in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Land $ 829 § 837 § 552 § 552 § 1,381 $ 1,389
Buildings and Systems 13,921 6,580 432 435 14,353 7,015
Infrastructure 18,990 10,198 24,455 25,148 43,445 35,346
Machinery and Equipment 3,804 3,054 4,781 4,198 8,585 7,252
Subscription Assets 234 234

Construction in Progress 152 13,787 2,681 375 2,833 14,162

$ 37,930 $ 34,456 $ 32,901 $ 30,708 $ 70,831 $ 65,164
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Additional information regarding capital asset activity of the City can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Long-Term Debt

The City has two issuances of general obligation debt outstanding. During the year the only activity was
the required debt service payments on those bonds.

Canadian River Municipal Water Authority (CRMWA) refunded obligations during the year and that change
was reflected on the financial statements. This debt is considered conduit debt as it is approved and
guaranteed by members of CRMWA.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City continues to take a conservative approach to the budget as the economic outlook continues to
improve. It supports the City Council’s Strategic Plan priorities that includes continued investment in our
economic development program, quality of life, major infrastructure, water planning for our future and
meaningful community engagement activities. It focuses on addressing rising inflation that has impacted
operating expenditures, construction projects and our employees. It is progressive in moving Plainview
forward while maintaining a sound financial position for the City. The Strategic Plan, Economic
Development Plan and the long-range Comprehensive Plan continue to guide the investments made by
the City to encourage new growth, development and diversification in the local economy.

Economic indicators including sales tax collections, hotel occupancy rates, construction activity at the local
level and regional level as well as the unemployment rate are typically indicators of the local economy and
are closely monitored for variances:

The unemployment rate was 4.4% in December 2022 compared to 5.1% in December 2023.
Sales Tax Collections totaled $5,112 in FY 2022 compared to $5,690 in FY 2023.
Hotel Occupancy Tax Collections totaled $354 in FY 2022 compared to $361 in FY 2023.

Valuations totaled approximately $870 million in 2022 compared to approximately $976 million in
2023.

The following factors were considered when preparing the FYE 2024 Budget:

e A cost of living adjustment for full time employees of 3.00% and step increases for all eligible
employees. Two new full-time positions were included in the budget. There was no budgeted
reduction for services.

e The Property Tax Rate included in the budget was $0.7616 per $100 valuation which is decrease
of $0.0549 The total assessed property valuations increased from $981,868,785 to
$1,131,438,842. This is a 15.24% increase over last year.

e The General Fund expenditure budget for the upcoming year increased by 5.20%.

¢ Inthe Solid Waste Management Fund, the 2023-2024 operating expenditure budget decreased by
0.90% from the previous year. In the Utility (Water & Sewer) Fund, the 2023-2024 operating
expenditure budget increased by 4.35%.
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The following major projects are incorporated into the FY 2024 Budget:

American Rescue Plan Act Projects

The City of Plainview has received over $5.0 million from the Coronavirus Local Recovery Fund (CLFRF)
authorized by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021. The City has authorized the allocation of
these funds to the following projects:

e Street infrastructure to include the extension of Mesa Drive from 16™ Street to 24™ Street.

¢ Relocation of the Plainview-Hale County Health Department to the new City Hall.

e Construction of a new inclusive playground in Broadway (City) Park that includes new lighting and
restrooms.

Capital Improvement

e Funds for reconstruction of Kidsville in Regional Park
Regional Park Baseball/Softball Complex, Phase 2

e Facility improvements including Golf Course, Aquatic Center, the renovation of Fire Station No. 1,
a study and construction funding for a Joint Public Safety Training Facility at the old National Guard
Armory and construction of a new Animal Shelter

e Funds to support the Downtown Streetscape Construction Project
Airport Improvement Projects in cooperation with Hale County and TXDOT Aviation

¢ NRCS Dam Site No. 4 Rehabilitation Project in cooperation with the local sponsors, NRCS and
Texas Soil and Water Conservation Board

Solid Waste Management Fund

e Landfill Cell Construction Planned for 2023-2024
e New roll off truck

Water and Sewer Improvements

e EPA Lead and Copper Rule Compliance

o Water Meter System Investment Grade Audit as part of the planned transition to Automatic
Metering Infrastructure in the future

o Replacement of the East Basin Mixer at the Wastewater Treatment Plant

e South Clarifier Rehabilitation and Splitter Box Replacement

e Quincy Street Water and Sewer Main replacements as a part of the TXDOT Quincy Street
Reconstruction Project

e Various water distribution and sewer system improvements

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City's
Financial Services Department, Attn: Finance Department — Email — finance@plainviewtx.org, City Hall,
202 W 5", Plainview, Texas 79072, or call (806) 296-1130.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A-1
GOVERNMENT-WIDE - STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 31,927,738 % 32,042,606 $ 63,970,344
Investments 112,049 112,049
Accounts Receivable, Net 1,584,006 1,598,774 3,182,780
Grants Receivable 161,678 161,678
Prepaid Expense 66,422 9,652 76,074
Inventories, at Cost 73,292 256,483 329,775
Due from Other Governments 92,600 92,600
Investment in Joint Venture 3,463,173 3,463,173
Capital Assets, Nondepreciable 980,370 3,233,297 4,213,667
Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 36,715,365 38,466,009 75,181,374
Subscription Assets, Net 234,249 234,249
Total Assets $ 75,298,893 $ 75,718,870 $ 151,017,763
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension $ 4,326,639 $ 1,266,186 $ 5,592,825
OPEB 111,391 111,391
Refunding Charges 94,362 94,362
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 4,438,030 $ 1,360,548 $ 5,798,578
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ 1,000,275  $ 1,221,692 $ 2,221,967
Wages Payable 185,650 55,467 241,117
Accrued Interest Payable 93,186 180,299 273,485
Customer Deposits 727,332 727,332
Unearned Revenue 3,809,329 3,809,329
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year 1,253,715 1,263,994 2,517,709
Due In More Than One Year 35,979,888 20,008,868 55,988,756
Total Liabilities $ 42,322,043 $ 23,457,652 $ 65,779,695
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension $ 196,868 $ $ 196,868
OPEB 432,157 432,157
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 629,025 $ 0 $ 629,025
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 16,503,669 $ 32,831,073 $ 49,334,742
Restricted For:
Enabling Legislation 1,059,618 1,059,618
Grant Programs 247,778 247,778
Debt Service 91,342 91,342
Unrestricted 18,883,448 20,790,693 39,674,141
Total Net Position $ 36,785,855 $ 53,621,766 $ 90,407,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A-3
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Special Revenue Nonmajor Total
General Debt Service Capital Projects CLFRF Grant Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 19,023,244 $ 87,047 $ 245730 $ 4,072,625 $ 1,034,669 $ 24,463,315
Accounts Receivable, Net 310,866 8,066 318,932
Taxes Receivable, Net 1,158,255 49,571 39,634 1,247,460
Due from Other Funds 4,535 89,531 94,066
Due from Other Governments 92,600 92,600
Grants Receivable 153,522 8,156 161,678
Prepaid Expense 29,228 551 29,779
Inventories 72,027 72,027
Total Assets $_ 20,844,277 $ 136,618 $ 335,261 $ 4,072,625 $ 1,091,076 $__ 26,479,857
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES:
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ 615,146 $ $ 335,261 $ 16,137 $ 23983 % 990,527
Wages Payable 183,125 2,321 185,446
Due to Other Funds 89,531 4,535 94,066
Unearned Revenue 3,808,710 619 3,809,329
Compensated Absences Payable 3,084 3,084
Total Liabilities $ 890,886 $ 0 $ 335,261 $ 3,824,847 $ 31,458 $ 5,082,452
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes $ 164,172 $ 45276 $ $ $ $ 209,448
Fines and Fees 113,235 113,235
Emergency Medical Services 44,000 44,000
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources ~ $ 321,407 $ 45276 $ 0 $ 0$ 0o $ 366,683
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable Fund Balances:
Prepaids $ 29,228 $ $ $ $ $ 29,228
Inventories 72,027 72,027
Restricted Fund Balances:
Restricted for Enabling Legislation 1,059,618 1,059,618
Restricted for Grant Programs 247,778 247,778
Restricted for Debt Service 91,342 91,342
Assigned Fund Balances 7,056,186 7,056,186
Unassigned Fund Balance 12,474,543 12,474,543
Total Fund Balances $ 19,631,984 $ 91,342 $ 0 $ 247,778 $ 1,059,618 $ 21,030,722
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $_ 20,844.277 $ 136,618 $ 335261 $ 4,072,625 $ 1,091,076 $ 26,479,857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-26 -



CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A-4
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds Balance Sheet $ 21,030,722
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (SNP) are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 34,567,051
Property taxes receivable, EMS Receivable, Deferred Grants, and Court Fines
Receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 366,683
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the
funds. 4,106,003
The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities
in the SNP. 9,566,780
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the
funds. (20,655,000)
The City's Investment in Joint Ventures is not recorded in the governmental funds but is
included in the Statement of Net Position. 3,463,173
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the
funds. (93,186)
Bond Premiums are not recorded in the funds. (537,066)
Net Pension Liabilities are not reported in the funds. (13,949,695)
Payables for compensated absences which are not reported in the funds. (1,079,610)
Net Position of Governmental Activities - Statement of Net Position $ 36,785,855

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A-5
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Special Revenue Nonmajor Total
General Debt Service Capital Projects CLFRF Grant Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenue:
Taxes:
Property Taxes and Related Fees $ 6,246,825 $ 1,724,609 $ $ $ 45221 $ 8,016,655
Sales and Use Taxes 5,690,426 5,690,426
Gross Receipts Business Tax 1,674,236 1,674,236
Selective Sales and Use Taxes 37,980 37,980
Motel Occupancy Taxes 361,011 361,011
Licenses and Permits 60,089 60,089
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 570,669 964,197 197,782 1,732,648
Charges for Services 758,924 758,924
Fines and Fees 225,978 75,315 301,293
Investment Earnings 1,043,920 14,875 69,919 214,151 47,881 1,390,746
Rents and Royalties 600 600
Contributions and Donations 39,626 5,032 44,658
Other Revenue 88,769 16,681 105,450
Total Revenues $ 16,438,042 $ 1,739,484 $ 69,919 $ 1,178,348 $ 748,923 $_ 20,174,716
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government - Administration $ 1,448,709 $ $ $ $ $ 1,448,709
General Government - Other 1,052,498 214,874 1,267,372
Public Safety 9,518,469 176,351 105,902 9,800,722
Public Works 1,207,807 45,568 265,355 1,518,730
Health 951,708 951,708
Recreation and Culture 1,454,741 258 90,344 1,545,343
Economic Development 350,693 62,197 412,890
Capital Outlay 460,576 3,120,411 698,584 232,972 4,512,543
Debt Service:
Principal 980,000 980,000
Interest Expense and Related Fees 773,196 773,196
Total Expenditures $ 16,445,201 $ 1,753,196 $ 3,342,330 $ 964,197 $ 706,289 $ 23,211,213
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (7,159) $ (13,712) $ (3,272,411 $ 214,151 $ 42,634 $_ (3,036,497)
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In (Out) $ 1,478,336 $ $ 89,531 $ $ (106,790) $ 1,461,077
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 102,000 102,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 1,580,336 $ 0% 89,531 $ 0% (106,790) $ 1,563,077
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 1573177 $ (13,712) $ (3,182,880) $ 214,151 $ (64,156) $ (1,473,420)
Fund Balances - Beginning 18,058,807 105,054 3,182,880 33,627 1,123,774 22,504,142
Fund Balances - Ending $ 19631984 $ 91,342 $ 0 $ 247,778 $ 1,059,618 $ 21,030,722

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A-6

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement Of Activities (SOA) are
different because:

Capital assets are not reported as expenses in the SOA.
Losses on the retirement of capital assets are not recorded in the funds.

The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the
funds.

Certain revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in
the SOA.

The City's proportionate share of Joint Venture income or loss is not presented in the
fund financial statements.

Bond premium amortization is not recorded in the funds.
Change in accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period.
The net revenue of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change related to pension liabilities, deferred inflows, and deferred outflows is not
recorded in the funds.

Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the
amount paid in the funds.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities - Statement of Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A-7
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste Water Nonmajor Total Internal
Management and Sewer Enterprise Proprietary Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 10,084,280 $ 21,874,068 $ 84,258 $ 32,042,606 $ 7,464,423
Investments 112,049 112,049
Accounts Receivable, Net 465,763 1,133,011 1,598,774 17,614
Prepaid Expense 2,483 6,893 276 9,652 36,643
Inventories, at Cost 256,276 207 256,483 1,265
Total Current Assets $ 10,552,526 $ 23,382,297 $ 84,741 $ 34,019,564 $ 7,519,945
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets
Nondepreciable $ 400,000 $ 2,828,297 $ 5000 $ 3,233,297 $
Depreciable, Net 5,047,126 33,367,281 51,602 38,466,009 3,128,684
Subscription Assets
Amortizable, Net 234,249
Total Noncurrent Assets $ 5447,126 $ 36,195,578 $ 56,602 $ 41,699,306 $ 3,362,933
Total Assets $ 15,999,652 ¢ 59,577,875 $ 141,343 ¢ 75,718,870 $ 10,882,878
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension $ 453591 $ 808,186 $ 4,409 $ 1,266,186 $ 23,768
OPEB 111,391
Refunding Charges 94,362 94,362
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 453,591 $ 902,548 $ 4,409 $ 1,360,548 $ 135,159
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 118,473 $ 1,099,987 $ 3232 $ 1,221,692 $ 9,748
Wages Payable 19,834 35,440 193 55,467 204
Accrued Interest Payable 180,299 180,299
Customer Deposits 727,032 300 727,332
Current Portion of Long Term Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,858 2,329 4,187
Subscription Liabilities 58,690
Bonds and Certificates of Obligation 665,000 665,000
Water Contract Obligation 594,807 594,807
Total Current Liabilities $ 140,165 $ 3,304,894 $ 3,725 ¢ 3,448,784 % 68,642
Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences $ 41582 $ 72,507 % $ 114,089 $
Subscription Liabilities 149,456
Closure and Post Closure 2,064,825 2,064,825
Net Pension Liability 465,090 828,675 4,521 1,298,286 24,370
Total OPEB Liability 776,632
Bonds and Certificates of Obligation 13,185,000 13,185,000
Unamortized Premiums 1,613,718 1,613,718
Water Contract Obligations 1,732,950 1,732,950
Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 2,571,497 $ 17,432,850 $ 4,521 $ 20,008,868 $ 950,458
Total Liabilities $ 2,711,662 $ 20,737,744 % 8,246 $ 23,457,652 $ 1,019,100
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
OPEB $ $ $ $ $__ 432,157
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 0 3% 0 3% 0 3% 0 3% 432,157
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 5,447,126 $ 27,327,345 $ 56,602 $ 32,831,073 $ 3,128,684
Unrestricted 8,294,455 12,415,334 80,904 20,790,693 6,438,096
Total Net Position $ 13,741,581 $ 39,742,679 $ 137,506 $ 53,621,766 $ 9,566,780

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A-8
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste Water Nonmajor Total Internal
Management and Sewer Enterprise Proprietary Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services: $ 3557,305 $ 8,312,648 $ 11,649 $ 11,881,602 3,403,923
Other Services 49,132 82,559 131,691 56,280
Total Operating Revenues $ 3606437 $ 8395207 $ 11,649 $ 12,013,293 3,460,203
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services $ 1282336 $ 2336816 $ 12,366 $ 3,631,518 66,239
Supplies and Materials 387,122 403,046 13,712 803,880
Contractual Services 40,950 170,831 211,781 2,276,019
Maintenance 483,107 654,874 18,944 1,156,925 101,432
Depreciation and Amortization 789,726 1,419,957 4,116 2,213,799 630,269
Other Expense 445,278 1,675,322 19,840 2,140,440 449,133
Total Operating Expenses $ 3428519 $ 6,660,846 $ 68,978 $ 10,158,343 3,523,092
Operating Income (Loss) $ 177,918 $ 1,734,361 $ (57,329) $ 1,854,950 (62,889)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest Revenue $ 506,775 $ 791,173 % 3,041 $ 1,300,989 349,819
Grant Revenue 12,589 12,589
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (207) (207) 84,630
Bond Issuance Costs (160,326) (160,326)
Interest Expense and Paying Agent Fees (298,612) (298,612) (3,348)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) $ 519,364 $ 332,028 $ 3,041 % 854,433 431,101
Income (Loss) Before Transfers $ 697,282 $ 2,066,389 $ (54,288) $ 2,709,383 368,212
Transfers In (Out) (557,087) (1,153,004) 75,000 (1,635,091) 174,013
Change in Net Position $ 140,195 $ 913,385 $ 20,712 $ 1,074,292 542,225
Total Net Position - Beginning 13,601,386 38,829,294 116,794 52,547,474 9,024,555
Total Net Position - Ending $ 13,741,581 $ 39,742,679 $ 137,506  $ 53,621,766 9,566,780

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Receipts from Interfund Services Provided
Cash Payments to Employees and for Benefits
Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services
Other Operating Cash Receipts
Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Cash Received from Intergovernmental Grants
Cash Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Net Cash from Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal and Interest Paid
Issuance of Debt
Premiums Received on Debt Issuance
Cost of Issuance
Proceeds from the Sale of Assets
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets
Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Investments
(Purchase) Sale of Investments

Net Cash from Investing Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
from Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
from Operating Activities

Depreciation and Amortization

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable, Net
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Wages Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Compensated Absences
Increase (Decrease) in Closure/Post-Closure Landfill Obligation
Increase (Decrease) in Pension and Related Deferrals
Increase (Decrease) in OPEB and Related Deferrals

Total Adjustments

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Schedule of Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Subscription Assets Acquired Through Software Arrangements

EXHIBIT A-9
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste Water Nonmajor Total Internal
Management and Sewer Enterprise Proprietary Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
3,465,140 8,593,168 $ 11,649 $ 12,069,957 $
3,397,066
(1,013,500) (2,207,379) (11,608) (3,232,487) (64,887)
(1,310,038) (2,067,020) (50,205) (3,427,263) (2,857,677)
49,132 82,559 131,691 56,280
1,190,734 4,401,328 $ (50,164) $ 5,541,898 $ 530,782
12,589 $ $ 12,589 $
(557,087) (1,153,004) 75,000 (1,635,091) 174,013
(544,498) (1,153,004) $ 75,000 $ (1,622,502) $ 174,013
(1,265,553) $ $ (1,265,553) $ (66,360)
10,155,000 10,155,000
746,931 746,931
(160,326) (160,326)
1,705 1,705 85,779
(1,328,545) (2,920,112) (12,728) (4,261,385) (1,273,105)
(1,328,545) 6,557,645 $ (12,728) $ 5,216,372 $ (1,253,686)
506,775 791,173 $ 3,041 $ 1,300,989 $ 350,169
(4,963) (4,963)
506,775 786,210 $ 3,041 $ 1,296,026 $ 350,169
(175,534) 10,592,179 $ 15,149 $ 10,431,794 $ (198,722)
10,259,814 11,281,889 68,809 21,610,512 7,663,145
10,084,280 21,874,068 $ 83,958 $_ 32,042,306 $ 7,464,423
177,918 1,734,361 $ (57,329) $ 1,854,950 $ (62,889)
789,726 1,419,957 $ 4,116 $ 2,213,799 $ 630,269
(92,165) 252,330 160,165 (6,857)
16 52 2 70 4,268
(25,989) 380 (25,609) 123
46,403 862,990 1,909 911,302 (26,723)
4,669 7,298 37 12,004 (656)
28,190 28,190
(100) (110) (210) (1,755)
201,373 201,373
62,894 122,249 721 185,864 3,763
(8,761)
1,012,816 2,666,967 $ 7,165 $ 3,686,948 $ 593,671
1,190,734 4,401,328 $ (50,164) $ 5,541,898 $ 530,782
$___ 278152

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The combined financial statements of City of Plainview, Texas (the City) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles applicable to governmental units which are generally accepted
in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.

Reporting Entity

The City's financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The City evaluated whether
any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including
organizations as component units within the City's reporting entity, as set forth in accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) include whether:

The organization is legally separate

The City holds the corporate powers of the organization

The City appoints a voting majority of the organization board

The City is able to impose its will on the organization

The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City
There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

Exclusion of the organization would result in misleading or incomplete financial
statements.

The City also evaluated any legally separate tax-exempt organizations whose resources are used
principally to provide support to the City to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would
result in financial statements which are misleading or incomplete. GAAP requires inclusion of such an
organization as a component unit when: 1) the economic resources received or held by the
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the City, its component units or its
constituents; and 2) the City or its component units are entitled to, or have the ability to otherwise
access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the organization; and 3) such
economic resources are significant to the City. Based on these criteria, the City has no component
units. Additionally, the City is not a component unit of any other reporting entity as defined by GAAP.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include
the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations been made to minimize the double-
counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include
(a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are
presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds,
with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental and proprietary funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies
and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Fund: This fund accounts for the financial resources that are restricted, committed or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities
and other capital assets.

Special Revenue — CLFRF Grant Fund: This fund accounts for the financial resources that are
restricted for the purposes of the grant program.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Solid Waste Management Fund: This fund accounts for the solid waste and disposal activities of the
City, including the activities of the City of Plainview Municipal Solid Waste Landfill.

Water and Sewer Fund: This fund accounts for the water supply and distribution, sanitary sewer,
storm water, and waste water treatment activities of the City.

In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to
services provided to parties inside the City. These funds facilitate distribution of support costs to the
users of support services on a cost-reimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the internal
services are the City's governmental activities, this fund type is included in the "Governmental
Activities" column of the government-wide financial statements.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Special revenue funds: These funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specialized purposes.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants,
entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days after
year-end. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues
and revenues received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept.
Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally
not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are
both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt is reported as other financing sources.

When the City incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources
may be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

Financial Statement Amounts

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash
equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Fair Value Measurements

The City has determined the fair value of certain assets and liabilities in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, which provides a framework for measuring fair value.
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Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques
should maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

A fair value hierarchy has been established, which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad
levels. Level 1 inputs consist of quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the related asset or liability. Level 3
inputs are unobservable inputs related to the asset or liability.

The City has no recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2023 as the City's
investments are not measured at fair value but rather the investment in TexPool are valued at
amortized cost.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all
real and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes
are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following
the year in which imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the
payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are
considered available when they become due or past due and receivable within the current period and
are collected.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund and Debt Service Fund are
based upon historical experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes
are periodically reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes
without specific statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories on the balance sheet are stated at first in first out method. Inventory items are recorded
as expenditures when they are consumed. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to
future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service
concession arrangement are reported at acquisition value. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.
A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used.
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Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Classes Useful Lives (Years)
Infrastructure 20
Buildings 40
Building Improvements 20
System and Improvements 33-60
Vehicles 5-7
Office Equipment 10
Computer Equipment 3-5

Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements

Subscription assets and liabilities are originally measured at the initial amount of the lease or
subscription payable, adjusted for payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus
certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the right to use or subscription asset is amortized on a
straight-line basis over its useful life.

Payable Balances

The City believes that sufficient detail of payable balances is provided in the financial statements to
avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances. Details of Receivables are provided in these Notes to Financial
Statements.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has deferred outflows of resources,
included on the proprietary fund financial statements and government wide financial statements, for
deferred charges on bond refunding’s, pension related items, and OPEB related items.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources are separate elements of the financial statements. The City

has deferred resources, included on the governmental fund financial statements, for unavailable
revenue from property taxes, EMS charges for services, and court fines.
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Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers between funds.
Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are
treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a
cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and
presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly,
interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single "Interfund Balances" line of
the government-wide statement of net position.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset/liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions
to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by TMRS.

For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for
the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

OPEB

The fiduciary net position has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the total OPEB
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to other post-
employment benefits, and OPEB expense. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms.
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Fund Balance

Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in
form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. All amounts reported as
nonspendable at September 30, 2023 were related to prepaids and inventories and are
nonspendable in form.

Restricted - Constraints placed on the use of these resources are either externally imposed by
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or other governments; or are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes as established by the
City Council's resolution. The City Council is the City's highest level of decision-making authority;
and the formal action that is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance
commitment is a resolution approved by the City's Council at the City Council's board meeting. As of
September 30, 2023, the City had no committed funds.

Assigned - includes amounts that are constrained by the City Council, or by another city official or
the finance division to which the City has delegated authority, that are to be used for specific
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned - includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed
or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund.

Minimum Fund Balance Policy

The City's goal is to have a sufficient fund balance in the general fund to address local and regional
emergencies without borrowing. In addition, the City will strive to maintain a minimum three months
of operating expenditures in the general fund unassigned fund balance.

When the City incurs expenditures that can be made from either restricted or unrestricted fund
balances, the expenditures should be charged to restricted fund balances. When the City incurs
expenditures that can be made from either committed, assigned, or unassigned balances, the
expenditures should be charged first to committed fund balances, second to assigned fund balances,
and third to unassigned fund balances.

Compensated Absences

The estimated current portion of the liability for vested sick leave and vacation benefits attributable to
the City's governmental funds is recorded as an expenditure and liability in the respective funds,
while the non-current portion is not reflected in the governmental fund financial statements, but is
reflected as a liability and expense in the Government-wide financial statements. Both the current
and non-current amounts attributable to proprietary funds are charged to expense and a
corresponding liability is recorded in the applicable funds. Details pertaining to both sick leave and
vacation are as follows:
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All full-time employees (except Police, Fire and EMS employees) accumulate sick leave at the rate
of one day per month for the first year of employment. Thereafter, six days per year are eligible for
accumulation up to a maximum of 60 days. Employees are paid annually for unused sick leave days
not eligible for accumulation at the rate of $30 per day. However, since no payment for accumulated
unused sick leave days is made upon termination of employment, and therefore does not vest, no
liability for such accumulated unused sick leave is recorded.

Certified Police officers accrue sick leave at the rate of ten hours per month, the equivalent of 15
days per year and may accumulate up to a maximum of 720 hours. Fire and EMS personnel accrue
sick leave at the rate of 15 hours per month, the equivalent of 15 days per year, and may
accumulate a maximum of 1,080 hours. Police, Fire and EMS employees are paid for unused
accumulated sick leave upon termination of employment.

Certified Police officers, Fire and EMS personnel accrue vacation leave at the rate of 15 days per
year. All other eligible employees with less than five years of continuous service accrue ten days per
year, while those employees with five or more years of continuous service accrue 15 days per year.
Generally, such vacation leave may be accumulated up to 20 days for employees with less than five
years of continuous service and up to 25 days for employees with five or more years of continuous
service.

Note 2 — Deposits and Investments
Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits

State law requires governmental entities to contract with financial institutions in which funds will be
deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities with a fair value equaling or
exceeding the amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged securities must be
in the name of the governmental entity and held by the entity or its agent. Since the City complied
with this law for the year ended September 30, 2023, it had no custodial credit risk for deposits.

Compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, to adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the following areas: (1)
safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable
risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio
investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity
date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences
for certificates of deposit.

The Public Funds Investment Act (the Act) requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit
procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the basic financial statements disclosed
that in the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate
policies, the City adhered to the requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the
District were in accordance with local policies.
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The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with
certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2)
certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) securities lending program, (5) repurchase
agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed
investment contracts, and (10) commercial paper.

The City's investments at September 30, 2023 are shown below.

Investment or Investment Type Average WAM Rating Amount
TexPool Investment Pool 23 Days Average AAAmM $ 112,049

Investment pools are not categorized as to investment risk since specific securities relating to the
government cannot be identified. The City utilizes Texas Local Government Investment Pool
(TexPool). The value of the pool is reported at amortized cost.

Under the TexPool Participation Agreement, administrative and investment services to TexPool are
provided by Federated Investors, Inc. through an agreement with the State of Texas Comptroller of
Public Accounts. The State Comptroller is the sole officer, director, and shareholder of the Texas
Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company authorized to operate TexPool. The reported value of the pool
is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. TexPool is subject to annual review by an
independent auditor consistent with the Public Funds Investment Act. Audited financial statements of
the Pool are available at First Public, 12008 Research Blvd., Austin, Texas 78759.

In addition, TexPool is subject to review by the State Auditor's Office and by the Internal Auditor of
the Comptroller's Office.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
State law and City policy limit investments in local government investment pools to those rated no
lower than AAA or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service. As of
September 30, 2023, the City’s investments in TexPool was rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but
not in the City’s name. The City’s demand deposits at year end are entirely covered by FDIC
insurance and pledged collateral held in the City’s name by the City’s agent.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The City's investment policy does not limit investments in any one issuer except that the investment
portfolio shall be diversified in terms of investment instruments, maturity scheduling, and continuously

investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local government investment
pools.
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Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to 365 days. The maximum
allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the City shall not exceed two years
from the time of purchase. As of September 30, 2023, TexPool’s portfolio maintained a weighted
average maturity of approximately 23 days.

Foreign Currency Risk

This risk relates to adverse effects on the fair value of an investment from changes in exchange
rates. While the City’s policy does not address this risk, the City has no foreign currency risk as of
year-end.

Note 3 — Receivables

The receivables detailed in the following table are reported net of allowances in the fund financial
statements as of September 30, 2023:

Solid Waste Water and Internal
Governmental Management Sewer Service
Funds Fund Fund Funds Total
Receivables:
Taxes $ 1,550,124 $ $ $ $ 1,550,124
Municipal Court 754,902 754,902
Other 53,027 17,614 70,641
Accounts 568,932 467,357 1,138,336 2,174,625
Gross Receivables $ 2,926,985 $ 467,357 $ 1,138,336 $ 17,614 $ 4,550,292
Less: Allowance
for Uncollectibles (1,360,593) (1,594) (5,325) (1,367,512)

Net Total Receivables  $ 1,566,392 § 465,763 $ 1,133,011 $ 17,614 $ 3,182,780

Note 4 — Interfund Balances and Activity

Transfers to and from other funds:

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount Purpose
Nonmajor Enterprise Nonmajor Governmental $ (75,000) Theatre Arts
Governmental/ISF Funds Solid Waste Management 557,087 Administration
Governmental/ISF Funds Water and Sewer 1,153,004 Administration

Net Transfers $ 1,635,091
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Note 5 - Capital and Subscription Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2023, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated or Amortized
Land $
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated or Amortized — $

Capital Assets Being Depreciated and Amortized
Buildings and Systems $
Machinery and Equipment
Subscription Assets, Amortization

Infrastructure
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated or Amortized $
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization for:
Buildings and Systems $

Machinery and Equipment
Subscription Assets, Amortization
Infrastructure

©“

Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated and Amortized, Net ~ $

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $

Beginning Net Ending

Balances Increases Transfers Decreases Balances
837,079 $ $ 8,500 828,579
13,787,144 77,608 (13,712,961) 151,791
14,624,223 77,608 $ (13,712,961) $ 8,500 980,370
10,117,700 2,181,017 $ 5,677,442 $ 3,100 17,973,059
11,012,439 1,500,324 (18,074) 356,801 12,137,888
278,152 278,152
26,356,307 2,020,691 8,035,520 19,978 36,392,540
47,486,446 5,980,184 $ 13,694,888 $ 379,879 66,781,639
3,638,175 517,449 $ $ 3,100 4,052,524
7,958,781 750,634 (19,779) 355,607 8,334,029
43,904 43,904
16,157,524 1,254,781 10,737 17,401,568
27,654,480 2,566,768 $ (19,779) $ 369,444 29,832,025
19,831,966 3,413,416 $ 13,714,667 $ 10,435 36,949,614
34,456,189 3,491,024 $ 1,706 $ 18,935 37,929,984

Depreciation was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General Government - Administration

General Government - Other
Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Recreation and Culture

Total Depreciation Charged to Governmental Activities
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Beginning Net Ending
Balances Increases Transfers Decreases Balances
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 552,359 $ $ $ $ 552,359
Construction in Progress 375,063 2,380,605 (74,730) 2,680,938
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated $ 927,422 $ 2,380,605 $ (74,730) $ 09 3,233,297
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Systems $ 2,769,879 $ 12,728 $ 15,155 $ 8,283 § 2,789,479
Machinery and Equipment 9,359,693 1,457,981 (22,669) 78,067 10,716,938
Infrastructure 51,190,271 410,071 59,576 51,659,918
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated $ 63,319,843 $ 1,880,780 $ 52,062 $ 86,350 $ 65,166,335
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Systems $ 2,334,582 $ 31,245 $ $ 8,075 $ 2,357,752
Machinery and Equipment 5,161,950 872,393 (20,963) 78,067 5,935,313
Infrastructure 26,042,310 1,162,788 27,205,098
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 33,538,842 $ 2,066,426 $ (20,963) $ 86,142 $ 35,498,163
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net $ 29,781,001 $ (185,646) $ 73,025 $ 208 $ 29,668,172
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 30,708,423 $ 2,194,959 $ (1,705) $ 208 $§ 32,901,469
Depreciation Expense $ 2,066,426

Note 6 — Water Supply Contract Costs

Water supply contract costs of the City’s business type activities was reported net of accumulated
amortization as of September 30, 2023 at $8,797,838. The gross unamortized balance of these
costs was $12,525,834 and the accumulated amortization was $3,727,996 as of September 30,
2023.

Note 7 — Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations
for the year ended September 30, 2023, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bond Payable $ 21,635,000 $ $ 980,000 $ 20,655,000 $ 1,030,000
Bond Premium, Net 574,319 37,253 537,066
Subscription Arrangements 271,157 63,011 208,146 58,690
Compensated Absences 1,008,726 325,224 251,256 1,082,694 165,025
Total Governmental Activities $ 23,218,045 $ 596,381 $ 1,331,520 $ 22482906 $ 1,253,715
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Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Business-Type Activities:
Bonds Payable $ 4,120,000 $ 10,155,000 $ 425,000 $ 13,850,000 $ 665,000
Bond Premium, Net 1,018,336 822,824 227,442 1,613,718
Water Contract Obligations 2,913,396 (15,503) 570,135 2,327,758 594,807
Closure/Postclosure Landfill 1,863,452 201,373 2,064,825
Compensated Absences 118,486 34,208 34,418 118,276 4,187
Total Business-Type Activities $ 10,033,670 $ 11,197,902 § 1,256,995 $ 19,974,577 $ 1,263,994

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability
Compensated Absences
Compensated Absences

Fund

General Fund
Enterprise Funds

Activity Type

Governmental
Business-Type

The Solid Waste Management Fund includes funds used to liquidate the liability for accrued landfill
closure and post closure costs.
Debt service requirements on long-term debt at September 30, 2023, are as follows:

Bonds Payable and Water Contract Obligations

Principal Interest Total

Year Ending September 30,

2024 2,289,807 $ 1,533,382 $ 3,823,189
2025 2,335,471 1,319,107 3,654,578
2026 2,311,914 1,209,164 3,521,078
2027 2,348,616 1,096,620 3,445,236
2028 2,404,448 988,903 3,393,351
2029-2033 10,727,502 3,639,304 14,366,806
2034-2038 10,885,000 1,760,608 12,645,608
2039-2043 3,530,000 364,600 3,894,600
Totals $ 36,832,758 $ 11,911,688 $ 48,744,446
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General Obligation Bonds

The 2018 General Obligation Bonds are secured by ad valorem taxes levied by the City. The
projects for this bond include 24th Street Reconstruction, City Hall/Police Department relocation
and renovation, fire station no. 2 relocation, 16th Street pool reconstruction, downtown
improvements and baseball field improvements. This series matures in 2038 and carries interest
rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% the year end balance is $20,655,000.

The 2020 General Obligation Refunding Bonds are secured by ad valorem taxes levied by the City.
This series matures in 2030 and carries an interest rate of 4.00%, the year-end balance was
$3,695,000.

The 2023 System Revenue Bonds are secured by system revenues charged by the City. The
projects for this bond include additions and improvements to the City’s Waterworks and Sewer
System, including an Advanced Metering System Project. This series matures in 2043 and carries
interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% the year end balance is $10,155,000.

Total bonded debt (excluding conduit debt) for the City was $34,505,000 as of September 30, 2023.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the bond indentures. Management
has indicated that the City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Continuing Disclosure

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Continuing
Disclosure Reports to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal
Market Access website. This information is required under SEC Rule 15¢2-12 to enable investors to
analyze the financial condition and operations of the City.

Surface Water Supply Contract Obligations

A significant portion of the City's water is supplied by a series of underground wells, together with
surface water, which is purchased from the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority (CRMWA).
CRMWA is a water district that was created in 1953 by the Texas legislature to construct a dam,
water reservoir, and aqueduct system for the purpose of supplying water to surrounding cities. Its
geographic area includes the surface water in the Texas Panhandle known as Lake Meredith, a
series of underground wells, and the aqueduct system, which supplies 11 cities.
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In connection with the financing of the initial construction project and subsequent projects
undertaken by CRMWA, the City is obligated for its proportionate share of CRMWA debt as follows:

Interest
Description Maturity Rates Balance
Refunding Series 2021 2/15/2025 2.0% to 5.0% $ 417,464
Refunding Series 2017 2/15/2029 3.0% to 5.0% 235,731
Refunding Series 2020 3/1/2031 4.0% to 5.0% 1,281,041
Refunding Series 2023 2/15/2027 2.0% t0 5.0% 393,522

$ 2,327,758

The 11 cities that are members of the aqueduct system have the right to elect the 19 members of
the CRMWA governing board. The City's contractual share of the available water is approximately
3.733%. Each member may sell part or all of its rights under the contract to other members of the
aqueduct system. Each member city is assessed its proportionate share of operating costs, which
are accounted for by the City as operating costs.

The City's costs of its rights to the surface and ground water are recorded in the Water and Sewer
Enterprise Fund and are being amortized over 85 years, which is the estimated useful life of the
CRMWA facilities and water basis. Such costs that have been capitalized by the City as of
September 30, 2023 and are being amortized over the life of the debt.

Although member cities have the right to elect the members of the CRMWA board, the City does
not report this contract as a joint venture due to the following factors: (1) CRMWA was created by
the State of Texas and is a subdivision thereof, as opposed to having been created by the members
of CRMWA. (2) The City has no vested rights to the assets of CRMWA, nor responsibility for its
liabilities, other than the City's proportionate share of the contractual construction obligations.

In connection with the financing of the initial construction project and subsequent projects
undertaken by CRMWA, the City is obligated for its proportionate share of CRMWA debt.

Note 8 — Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA)

During the year City adopted GASB Statement No. 96. There were no restatements made from
adoption this statement.

The City has entered into various subscription arrangements for the right to access various software
and hardware. The City is required to make period principal and interest payments using either its
incremental borrowing rate or the interest stated or implied in the subscription arrangements. Some
arrangements have an option to extend the term after the initial agreed upon period. The City’s
subscription assets and associated amortization are included in in Note 5. Capital and
Subscription Assets.

There were no payments recorded in the current period that were not included in the measurement of
the arrangements.
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Subscription arrangements are summarized as follows for the year ended September 30, 2023:

On 10/01/2022, City of Plainview, TX entered into a 57 month subscription for the use of Novatime
Software. An initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of $40,902.72. As of 09/30/2023,
the value of the subscription liability is $30,962.60. City of Plainview, TX is required to make annual
fixed payments of $18,065.00. The subscription has an interest rate of 3.4450%. The value of the
right to use asset as of 09/30/2023 of $47,897.72 with accumulated amortization of $10,019.28 is
included with Software on the Subscription Class activities table found below.

On 05/06/2023, City of Plainview, TX entered into a 60 month subscription for the use of Axon Fleet
License. An initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of $119,465.69. As of
09/30/2023, the value of the subscription liability is $94,342.73. City of Plainview, TX is required to
make annual fixed payments of $56,160.10. The subscription has an interest rate of 2.8220%. The
value of the right to use asset as of 09/30/2023 of $119,465.69 with accumulated amortization of
$9,623.63 is included with Software on the Subscription Class activities table found below.

On 10/01/2022, City of Plainview, TX entered into a 49 month subscription for the use of
Evidence.com License. An initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of $29,857.37. As
of 09/30/2023, the value of the subscription liability is $22,076.18. City of Plainview, TX is required to
make annual fixed payments of $7,866.00. The subscription has an interest rate of 3.4087%. The
value of the right to use asset as of 09/30/2023 of $29,857.37 with accumulated amortization of
$7,312.01 is included with Software on the Subscription Class activities table found below.

On 10/01/2022, City of Plainview, TX entered into a 56 month subscription for the use of
Professional Evidence.com License. An initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of
$77,923.66. As of 09/30/2023, the value of the subscription liability is $58,926.30. City of Plainview,
TX is required to make annual fixed payments of $37,990.54. The subscription has an interest rate of
3.4450%. The value of the right to use asset as of 09/30/2023 of $77,923.66 with accumulated
amortization of $16,697.93 is included with Software on the Subscription Class activities table found
below.

On 05/01/2023, City of Plainview, TX entered into a 60 month subscription for the use of Axon
Interview Software. An initial subscription liability was recorded in the amount of $3,007.89. As of
09/30/2023, the value of the subscription liability is $1,837.89. City of Plainview, TX is required to
make annual fixed payments of $2,957.16. The subscription has an interest rate of 3.4450%. The
value of the right to use asset as of 09/30/2023 of $3,007.89 with accumulated amortization of
$250.66 is included with Software on the Subscription Class activities table found below.

Interest Liability at Arrangement September 30,
Subscription Arrangements Rates Commencement Term in Months 2023
Software/Hardware 2.82%-3.44% $ 278,152 49-60 $ 208,146
$ 278,152 $ 208,146
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Estimated annual requirements to amortize the subscription arrangements and related interest are as
follows:

SBITA Obligations

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending September 30,
2024 $ 58,690 $ 6,597 $ 65,287
2025 60,568 4,719 65,287
2026 62,508 2,779 65,287
2027 26,380 778 27,158
Totals $ 208,146 $ 14,873 $ 223,019

Note 9 — Employee Retirement Benefits
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Plan Description

The City participates as one of 919 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an
agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G,
Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system
for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and
management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the
advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State
of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the
Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available annual comprehensive financial report
(ACFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest,
and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may
choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to
12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75.00% of the member’s deposits and interest.
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Currently the City has adopted the following provisions related to the pension plan:

December 31, 2022

Employee Deposit Rate 7.00%

Matching Ratio (City to Employee) 2to 1

Years Required for Vesting 5

Service Requirement Eligibility

(Expressed as Age / Years of Service) 60/5,0/25
Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating, Transfers
Annuity Increase (to Retirees) 70% of CPI

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31, 2022 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 128
Inactive Employees Entitled to but not Yet Receiving Benefits 93
Active Employees 146
Total Plan Employees 367

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5.00%, 6.00%, or 7.00% of employee
gross earnings, and the city matching percentages are either 100.00%, 150.00%, or 200.00%,
both as adopted by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the
contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal
(EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary
to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City were required to contribute 7.00% of their annual gross earnings during the
fiscal year. The required contribution rates for the City were 11.52% and 11.18% in calendar years
2022 and 2023, respectively. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30,
2023, were $885,053, and were in excess of required contributions by $37,603.

Net Pension Liability
The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the Total

Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Asset (Liability) was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date.
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Actuarial Assumptions
Inflation 2.50% per year
Overall Payroll Growth 2.45% per year

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Amortization Period 23 years

Salary increases are based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are
based on the PUB(10) mortality tables with the Public Safety table used for males and the
General Employee table used for females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and beneficiaries are
based on the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality tables. The rates for
actives, healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale
UMP to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the same mortality
tables for healthy retirees is used with a 4-year set-forward for males and a 3-year set-forward for
females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum mortality rate is applied, for males and females
respectively, to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements
subject to the floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the
experience of TMRS over the four-year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018.
They were adopted in 2019 and first used in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. The post-
retirement mortality assumption for Annuity Purchase Rates (APRs) is based on the Mortality
Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. Plan
assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well
as the production of income in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of
TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. In determining their best estimate of a recommended investment
return assumption under the various alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the
area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and
(2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive).
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return (Arithmetic)
Global Equity 35.00% 7.70%
Core Fixed Income 6.00% 4.90%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.00% 8.70%
Other Public Private Markets 12.00% 8.10%
Real Estate 12.00% 5.80%
Hedge Funds 5.00% 6.90%
Private Equity 10.00% 11.80%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will
be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary
Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total
Pension Liability.

Changes in Net Pension Asset (Liability)

Total Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Pension Liability Net Position Asset (Liability)
Balance 12/31/2021 $ 46,568,803 $ 49,260,160 $ 2,691,357
Service Cost 1,164,369 (1,164,369)
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 3,102,902 (3,102,902)
Difference Between Expected
and Actual Experience 297,161 (297,161)
Contributions - Employer 883,944 883,944
Contributions - Employee 491,888 491,888
Net Investment Income (3,591,392) (3,591,392)
Benefit Payments (2,364,129) (2,364,129)
Administrative Expense (31,116) (31,116)
Other 37,131 37,131
Balance 12/31/2022 $ 48,769,106 $ 44,686,486 $ (4,082,620)
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Asset (Liability) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension asset (liability) of the City, calculated using the discount
rate of 6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than
the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate Assumption 1% Increase
$ (10,327,619) $ (4,082,620) $ 1,080,886

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-
issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows, and Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $1,439,185 and
calculated as shown below:

Total Service Cost $ 1,164,369
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 3,102,902
Employee Contributions (Reduction of Expense) (491,888)
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (Reduction of Expense) (3,325,061)
Administrative Expense 31,116
Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (37,131)
Recognition of Current Year Outflow (Inflow) of Resources-Liabilities 127,417
Recognition of Current Year Outflow (Inflow) of Resources-Assets 867,461
Total Pension Expense $ 1,439,185

At September 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Pension Plan Adjustments of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 278214 $
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings 3,052,874
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 650,588
$ 3,981,676 $ 0
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$650,588 of employer contribution deferrals will be fully amortized in plan year 2023. Total amounts
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Amortization of

Plan Year Deferred Outflows
2023 $ 284,822
2024 840,733
2025 822,244
2026 1,383,289

$ 3,331,088

Plainview Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund (PFRRF)
Plan Description

The Board of Trustees of the Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund of Plainview, Texas (the Plan)
is the administrator of a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Board of Trustees
consists of three firemen elected by the members, two citizens elected by the board, and the City
Mayor and Finance Director serving as ex-officio members. Substantially all firefighters in the
Plainview Fire Department are covered by the Plan. The plan is not subject to the provisions of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and was last amended effective
January 26, 2021.

As of December 31, 2022, which is the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan had 39
retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits, 2 terminated members with deferred
benefits, and 32 active members. The total plan membership is 73.

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides service retirement, death, disability, and withdrawal benefits. These benefits fully
vest after 20 years of credited service with partial vesting available with 10 years of service.
Members hired before October 1, 1994 may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service. Members
hired on or after October 1, 1994 may retire at age 53 with 20 years of service if vested on January
1, 2017. Members hired on or after October 1, 1994 may retire at age 54 with 20 years of service if
not vested on January 1, 2018. As of the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation date, the Plan
provided a monthly normal service retirement benefit, not to exceed 64% of "Monthly Average
Salary (excluding overtime)”, plus a "longevity" benefit equal to $78 per month for each whole year
of service in excess of 20 years, subject to a 15 year maximum. There is no provision for automatic
postretirement benefit increases.

The contribution provisions of this plan are authorized by TLFFRA. TLFFRA provides the authority
and procedure to change the amount of contributions determined as a percentage of pay by each
firefighter and a percentage of payroll by the City. The costs of administering the Plan are financed
from the trust.

-54 -



CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A firefighter has the option to participate in a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) which
provides a lump sum benefit and a reduced annuity upon termination of employment. This option is
available with a reduced monthly benefit is determined based on an elected lump sum amount such
that the combined present value of the benefits under the option is actuarially equivalent to that of
the normal form of the monthly benefit. Optional forms are also available at varying levels of
surviving spouse benefits instead of the standard two-thirds form.

There is no provision for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. PFRRF has the authority to
provide, and has periodically provided for in the past, ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases. The
benefit provisions of this plan are authorized by the TLFFRA. TLFFRA provides the authority and
procedure to amend benefit provisions. Amending the plan requires approval of any proposed
change by: a) an eligible actuary and b) a majority of the participating members of the fund.

Contributions

The contribution provisions of this plan are authorized by TLFFRA. TLFFRA provides the authority
and procedure to change the amount of contributions determined as a percentage of pay by each
firefighter and a percentage of payroll by the City. While the actual contribution rates are not
actuarially determined, state law requires that each plan of benefits adopted by PFRRF be approved
by an eligible actuary. The actuary certifies that the contribution commitment by the firefighters and
the City provides an adequate financing arrangement. Using the entry age actuarial cost method,
PFRRF’s service cost contribution rate is determined as a percentage of payrolls. The excess of the
total contribution rate over the service cost contribution is used to amortize PFRRF’s net pension
liability, if any, and the number of years needed to amortize PFRRF’s net pension liability, if any is
determined using a level percentage of payroll method. The costs of administering the plan are
financed by PFRRF.

Employees were required to contribute 15.00% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year.
The contribution rate for the City was 25% during the fiscal year. The City’s contributions to PFRRF
for the year ended September 30, 2023 were $611,700 and were in excess of the required
contributions by $41,709.

Net Pension Liability
The PFRRF’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the Total

Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuary valuation as of
December 31, 2022.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability

Total Plan Fiduciary Net
Pension Liability Net Position Pension Liability
Balance 12/31/2021 $ 17,541,711 § 8,106,289 $ (9,435,422)
Service Cost 311,112 (311,112)
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 1,294,416 (1,294,416)
Contributions - Employee 329,375 329,375
Contributions - Employer 834,514 834,514
Net Investment Income (1,288,667) (1,288,667)
Benefit Payments (1,187,892) (1,187,892)
Administrative Expense (24,003) (24,003)
Balance 12/31/2022 $ 17,959,347 $ 6,769,616 $ (11,189,731)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in discount rate of 7.50%.

1% Decrease Current Rate Assumption 1% Increase
$ (13,244,371) § (11,189,731) $ (9,483,260)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension Expense for the year ended September 30, 2023 was $1,016,155 and is as follows:

Total Service Cost $ 311,112
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,294,416
Employee Contributions (Reduction of Expense) (329,375)
Changes of Assumptions 61,611
Experience Differences (39,229)
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (Reduction of Expense) (306,383)
Administrative Expense 24,003
Total Pension Expense $ 1,016,155

Deferred Outflows of Resources related to the pension plan at September 30, 2023 were made up
of as follows and will be amortized according to the table below:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Pension Plan Adjustments Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ $ 168,382
Changes in Assumptions 28,486
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings 1,128,535
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 482,614
Total $ 1,611,149 $ 196,868
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Employer contributions of $482,614 related to contributions subsequent to the plan measurement
date will be fully amortized in plan year 2023. Total amounts will be amortized as follows:

Amortization of

Plan Year Deferred Outflows
2023 $ 42,721
2024 184,851
2025 325,127
2026 378,968
2027

$ 931,667

Other Retirement and Miscellaneous Benefits

The City makes available to all of its full-time employees a custom benefit plant (cafeteria plan)
under Internal Revenue Code Section 125 and a deferred compensation plan under Internal
Revenue Code 457.

The City does not contribute to these plans. All contributions are made by employees who elect to
participate in the plans. The City remits employee contributions to the plan trustees on a regular
basis. The City does not administer the Section 457 plan, nor does it provide investment advice to
the plan. Accordingly, the Section 457 plan is not a part of the City's reporting entity.

Note 10 — Health Care Coverage

The City provided health insurance benefits to eligible employees who chose to participate.
Employees, at their option, authorize payroll withholdings to pay contributions for dependent
coverage. Blue Cross Blue Shield, a licensed insurer, provided the health insurance coverage.

Note 11 — Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description

The City participates in the City of Plainview Retiree Health Care Plan. This is a single employer
plan that is not administered by a trust. There are no assets accumulated in a trust. Texas Local
Government Code Section 177.001 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions
to the City Council.

Plan Benefits

Full-time employees, their spouse, and dependents, and retirees, their spouse, and dependents are
eligible to participate in the City's single-employer health care plan. Eligible retirees choosing to

participate in the plan pay premiums to the plan. Retiree coverage terminates at the end of the
month that the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare or Medicaid.
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Plan Membership

As of December 31, 2022, the last actuarial valuation date, the plan had 4 inactive members
currently receiving benefits, 0 inactive members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits, and 160
active plan members. Total membership as of December 31, 2022 was 164 members.

Contributions

The funding policy of the plan is to ensure that adequate resources are available to meet the
required insurance premiums for the upcoming year. It is not the intent of the funding policy to pre-
fund retiree life insurance during employees' entire careers. The City's contributions, which equaled
the required contribution, were based upon a factor of 1.685 which equals the ratio of the expected
retiree claims to the expected retiree contributions. Total contributions paid by the City equaled
$26,840 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age Normal

Discount Rate 4.05%

Inflation 2.50%

Projected Salary Increases 3.50% to 11.50% for TMRS Employees and 3.50%
To 8.00% for Firefighters, including inflation

Health Care Cost Trend Rates Initial Rate of 7.00% declining to 4.15% after 15
Years

Mortality Rate — Service Retirees

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis with scale UMP. For healthy TMRS retirees, the gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of
Texas mortality tables are used. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis using the
ultimate mortality improvement rates in the MP tables to account for future mortality improvements.
For healthy firefighter retirees, the gender-distinct 2010 Pub-S mortality tables projected
generationally with Scale MP-2021.

Mortality Rate — Disabled Retirees

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4-year set-forward for males and a 3-year
set-forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect
the impairment for younger members who become disabled for males and females, respectively.
The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality
improvements subject to the floor.
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Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2022 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies. The 2019 experience study adopted for the plan was for the period
December 31, 2014 through December 31, 2018 and is based on the TMRS study for the same
period.

Discount Rate

There was a change in discount rate from 1.84% as of December 31, 2021 to 4.05% as of
December 31, 2022. The rate was derived from the 20 year municipal GO AA index.

OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Relate to
OPEB

As of September 30, 2023, the City reported a total OPEB Liability of $776,632 measured as of
December 31, 2022.

For the year ended September 30, 2023 the City recognized OPEB expense of $9,257.

Changes in the total OPEB liability for the measurement year ended December 31, 2022 are as
follows:

Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 920,525
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 62,035
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 17,261
Experience Differences (11,871)
Effect of Assumptions Changes or Inputs (184,478)
Benefit Payments (26,840)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 776,632

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
1.84%, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.84%) or 1 percentage point higher (2.84%) than the current
rate.

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate (3.05%) Discount Rate (4.05%) Discount Rate (5.05%)
Total OPEB Liability $ (854,065) $ (776,632) $ (708,023)
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Health Care Cost Trend Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the plan using the assumed healthcare cost trend
rate, as well as, what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the assumed healthcare cost trend
rate.

1% Decrease in Current HCT 1% Increase in
HCT Rate Rate Assumption HCT Rate
Total OPEB Liability $ (689,928) $ (776,632) $ (879,752)

At September 30, 2023 the City reported its deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Employer Contribution Deferral $ 20,130 $
Experience Differences 245,387
Changes in Assumptions 91,261 186,770
$ 111,391  $ 432,157

$20,130 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability for
the year ended September 30, 2023. The balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to OPEB, excluding contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Amortization of
Deferred Resources

2024 $ (70,039)
2025 (72,864)
2026 (73,300)
2027 (48,724)
2028 (47,555)
Thereafter (28,414)

$ (340,896)

Note 12 — Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year end the City received a loan from the State Infrastructure Bank in the amount of

$2,886,000. The loan has a 10 year term and carries an interest rate of 2.95%. The loan will fund
utility relocation for a state highway improvement project.
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Note 13 - Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets,
error and omission, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City obtained general liability
coverage at a cost that is considered to be economically justifiable by joining together with other
governmental entities in the State as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental
Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common risk management and
insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to TML for the aforementioned insurance
coverage.

The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk
levels; however, each category of coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The City continues to
carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss.

There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and
settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years. The City is generally self-insured for physical damage to vehicles.

Note 14 — Contingencies and Litigation
Contingencies

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various regulations and rules of the
grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and
adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the
rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the
collectability of any related receivable may be impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no
significant contingent liabilities relating to the compliance with the rules and regulations governing
the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic
financial statements for such contingencies.

Litigation and Claims

Certain claims have been made against the City. The City intends to vigorously defend such claims
or any suit. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Note 15 — Closure and Post Closure Care

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its City of Plainview
Municipal Solid Waste Landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and
postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste,
the City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in
each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date.
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The $2,064,825 reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability as of September 30, 2023,
represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 26.49% of the estimated
capacity of the landfill. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and
postclosure of $5,729,910 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based
on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2023. The City expects to close
the landfill in the year 2095. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations.

It is the policy of the City to satisfy the EPA financial assurance requirements using the financial test
method. Additionally, the Solid Waste Management Fund has cash and investments equal to the
recorded liability for landfill closure and postclosure costs, which amounted to $2,064,825 as of
September 30, 2023.

Note 16 — Investment in Joint Venture
Plainview/Hale County Airport

The Plainview/Hale County Airport is under equal joint ownership by the City of Plainview and the
County of Hale. General administration is accomplished by an Airport Board composed of seven
members. Three members are appointed by the City and three members are appointed by the
County. The seventh board member is selected by the other six board members and is approved by
both the City and County. The degree of control of each government consists of its representation
on the Board. Hale County is the fiscal agent for the joint venture. General airport operations are
funded by user charges and typically require support for major improvements only.

Complete financial statements for the joint venture can be obtained from:
Melinda Silvas, County Auditor

County of Hale

500 Broadway

Plainview, TX 79072

Transactions with the Plainview/Hale County Airport for the year ended September 30, 2023
included those related to routine water, sewer and solid waste utility services.

Year Ending Date 12/31/2022

Total Current Assets $ 676,572
Total Capital and Noncurrent Assets 2,989,926
Total Current Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 423,067
Net Position 3,243,431
Operating Revenues 420,930
Operating Expenses 260,317
Change in Net Position 160,613
50% Share of Change $ 80,307
50% Share of Net Position 1,621,716

The City's interest in the joint venture is accounted for using the equity method.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Plainview/Hale County Business Park

The City of Plainview/Hale County Business Park is under equal joint ownership by the City of
Plainview and the County of Hale. General administration is accomplished by the Community
Development Program Committee composed of five members. Two members are appointed by the
City and two members are appointed by the County. The fifth board member is the Plainview Hale
County Economic Development Corporation. The degree of control of each government consists of
its representation on the Board. The City of Plainview is the fiscal agent for the joint venture.

Year Ending Date 9/30/2023

Total Current Assets $ 837
Total Capital Assets 3,682,915
Total Current Liabilities 837
Net Position 3,682,915
Operating Revenues 3,216
Operating Expenses 196,563
Change in Net Position (193,347)
50% Share of Change $ (96,674)
50% Share of Net Position 1,841,458

Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Finance Department for the City of
Plainview, Texas.

The City's interest in the joint ventures is accounted for using the equity method.
Note 17 — Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year end the City received a loan in the amount of $2,886,000 from the

State Infrastructure Bank. The loan carries an interest rate of 2.95% and matures in 10 years. The
loan is pledged against utility system revenues.
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Revenue:
Taxes:
Property Taxes and Related Fees
Sales and Use Taxes
Gross Receipts Business Tax
Selective Sales and Use Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
Charges for Services
Fines and Fees
Investment Earnings
Rents and Royalties
Contributions and Donations
Other Revenue

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government - Administration
City Council
City Manager
Municipal Court
Legal
Finance
Human Resources
Information Technology

General Government - Other
Nondepartmental
Building Operations

Property Tax Appraisal / Collection

Public Safety
Police
Fire
Traffic Control
Emergency Operations Center
Street Lighting
Animal Control
Public Works
Public Works - General
Street Cleaning
Streets - Other
Health
Community Development
City-County Health Department
Health TDH - ORP
Health TDH - IMM
Recreation and Culture
Main Street
Parks
Swimming Pool
Airport
Library
Total Expenditures

CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In (Out)
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT B-6

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
6,276,245 $ 6,276,245 $ 6,246,825 $ (29,420)
4,407,000 4,407,000 5,690,426 1,283,426
1,310,230 1,310,230 1,674,236 364,006
30,000 30,000 37,980 7,980
90,195 90,195 60,089 (30,106)
323,745 463,985 520,669 56,684
735,100 735,100 758,924 23,824
181,810 181,810 225,978 44,168
145,000 145,000 782,973 637,973
600 600 600 0
75,420 35,626 (39,794)
36,885 70,175 88,769 18,594
13,536,810 $ 13,785,760 $ 16,123,095 $ 2,337,335
67,780 $ 67,780 % 49,012  $ 18,768
550,260 554,440 553,450 990
180,355 183,145 175,804 7,341
169,085 169,085 119,013 50,072
87,080 95,480 90,772 4,708
187,715 193,905 200,836 (6,931)
298,540 301,330 259,822 41,508
523,160 579,185 506,648 72,537
110,705 170,705 150,885 19,820
142,000 146,500 145,112 1,388
4,320,580 4,600,575 4,348,219 252,356
4,234,915 4,517,205 4,385,659 131,546
241,010 256,595 226,076 30,519
38,920 38,920 28,870 10,050
335,000 413,000 401,398 11,602
169,680 188,780 174,128 14,652
182,160 183,560 169,599 13,961
211,320 214,110 205,187 8,923
812,290 834,365 842,235 (7,870)
442,760 469,780 447,219 22,561
117,155 119,945 121,153 (1,208)
88,530 89,930 92,423 (2,493)
245,795 311,065 290,913 20,152
173,040 177,875 173,707 4,168
823,660 906,230 754,326 151,904
100,000 115,000 96,741 18,259
5,000 5,000 5,000
491,745 505,680 466,806 38,874
15,350,240 $ 16,409,170 $ 15476,013 $ 933,157
(1,813,430) $ (2,623,410) $ 647,082 $__ 3,270,492
1,427,190 $ (952,810) $ (932,133) $ 20,677
1,000 118,500 102,000 (16,500)
1,428,190 $ (834,310) $ (830,133) $ 4,177
(385,240) $ (3,457,720) $ (183,051) $__ 3,274,669
12,758,573 12,758,573 12,758,573
12,373,333 $ 9,300,853 $ 12,575,522

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Valuation Date:

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December
31, and become effective in January, 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 23 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 12% soft corridor

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 11.50% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of

benefits. Last updated for the 2019 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period 2014 - 2018

Mortality Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP. Pre-
retirement; PUB(10) mortality tables, with the Public Safety table used for
males and the General Employee table used for females. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP.

Other Information:

Changes in Assumptions: There were no changes in assumptions during the year.

Benefits Changes: There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
PLAINVIEW FIREMEN’S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND PENSION PLAN
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Valuation Date:

Notes As of December 31, 2022 for the measurement year
ended December 31, 2023.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Closed period level percent of pay
Remaining Amortization Period 33 years

Asset Valuation Method Market value of assets

Salary Increases Service Graded

Investment Rate of Return 7.5%, net of plan expenses
Retirement Age Age and Service - Related

Mortality Pub2010PS with MP 2021 projection

Other Information:

Changes in Benefits: There were no benefit changes during the year.
Changes in Assumptions: There were no changes in assumptions during the
year.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

BUDGETARY DATA

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic
financial statements:

a. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City prepares a budget for the next succeeding
fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them.

b. A meeting of the City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget.
At least 10 days public notice of the meeting must have been given.

c. Prior to the start of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an
ordinance by the City Council.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members of
the City Council. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected
in the official minutes of the City Council and are not made after fiscal year end. The legal level
of control is at the fund level. During the year, the budget was amended as necessary. All
budget appropriations lapse at year end.

The budget is presented on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP).
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-5
HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Taxes:

Motel Occupancy Taxes $ 350,000 $ 350,000 $ 361,011 $ 11,011
Investment Earnings 6,500 6,500 41,185 34,685
Other Revenue 16,676 16,676

Total Revenues $ 356,500 $ 356,500 $ 418,872 % 62,372

Expenditures:
General Government - Other $ 416,705 % 495105 % 413,054 % 82,051
Total Expenditures $ 416,705 % 495,105 $ 413,054 % 82,051
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (60,205) $ (138,605) $ 5818 $ 144,423

Other Financing Uses:

Transfers Out $ (65,250) $ (105,000) $ (105,000) $
Total Other Financing Uses $ (65250) $ (105,000) $ (105,000) $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (125,455) $ (243,605) $ (99,182) $ 144,423
Fund Balances - Beginning 869,743 869,743 869,743
Fund Balances - Ending $ 744,288 $ 626,138 $ 770,561 $ 144,423
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-6
POLICE SEIZURE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Fines and Fees $ 4000 $ 12,445  $ 8,448 $ (3,997)
Total Revenues $ 4,000 $ 12,445 % 8,448 % (3,997)
Expenditures:
Current
Public Safety $ $ 12,850 $ 10,689 $ 2,161
Total Expenditures $ 0 $ 12,850 $ 10689 $ 2,161
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 4,000 $ (405) $ (2,241) $ (1,836)
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 4,000 $ (405) $ (2,241) $ (1,836)
Fund Balances - Beginning 4,403 4,403 4,403
Fund Balances - Ending $ 8,403 $ 3,998 $ 2,162 $ (1,836)
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current
Public Safety
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

EXHIBIT C-7
FEDERAL FORFEITURE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 115,450 115451  $ 1
$ 115,450 115,451  $ 1
$ 115,450 105,884  $ 9,566
$ 115,450 105,884 % 9,566
$ 0 9,567 $ 9,567
$ 0 9567 $ 9,567

0 0

$ 0 9567 $ 9,567

Fund Balances - Ending
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
Investment Earnings
Contributions and Donations
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current
Recreation and Culture
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:
Transfers In
Total Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

EXHIBIT C-8
RSVP FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
74,630 74,630 79831 % 5,201
476 476
12,515 12,515 5,032 (7,483)
19,770 19,770 5 (19,765)
106,915 106,915 85,344  $ (21,571)
106,915 108,315 90,344  $ 17,971
106,915 108,315 90,344 % 17,971
0 (1,400) (50000 $ (3,600)
5,000 5000 $

0 5,000 5000 $ 0
0 3,600 0 % (3,600)

0 0 0
0 3,600 0 $ (3,600)

Fund Balances - Ending
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-9
MUNICIPAL COURT SECURITY FEE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Fines and Fees $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 15,507 $ 8,507
Total Revenues $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 15507 % 8,507
Expenditures:
Current
General Government - Admin $ 12,000 $ 12,000 $ 336 % 11,664
Total Expenditures $ 12,000 $ 12,000 $ 336 % 11,664
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (50000 $ (5,000) $ 15171 $ 20,171
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (5,000) $ (5,000) $ 15171 $ 20,171
Fund Balances - Beginning 41,889 41,889 41,889
Fund Balances - Ending $ 36,889 $ 36,889 $ 57,060 $ 20,171
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Revenue:
Fines and Fees
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Government - Administration
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-10
TRUANCY PREVENTION AND DIVERSION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 5,000 5,000 9,660 $ 4,660
$ 5,000 5,000 9,660 $ 4,660
$ 2,500 2,500 $ 2,500
$ 2,500 2,500 0 $ 2,500
$ 2,500 2,500 9,660 $ 7,160
$ 2,500 2,500 9,660 % 7,160

17,384 17,384 17,384

$ 19,884 19,884 27,044 % 7,160

Fund Balances - Ending
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-11
MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Fines and Fees $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $ 15,773 $ 7,773
Total Revenues $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $ 15773 % 7,773
Expenditures:
General Government - Admin $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 10,993 % 14,007
Total Expenditures $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 10,993 % 14,007
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (17,000) $ (17,000) $ 4780 % 21,780
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (17,000) $ (a7,000) $ 4780 % 21,780
Fund Balances - Beginning 53,296 53,296 53,296
Fund Balances - Ending $ 36,296 $ 36,296 $ 58,076 $ 21,780
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-12
PEG FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Fines and Fees $ 32,000 $ 32,000 $ 25,927 $ (6,073)
Investment Earnings 300 300 2,432 2,132
Total Revenues $ 32,300 $ 32,300 % 28,359 % (3,941)
Expenditures:
General Government - Other $ $ 25,000 $ 12,792 $ 12,208
Total Expenditures $ 0 s 25,000 $ 12,792 % 12,208
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 32,300 $ 7,300 $ 15,567 $ 8,267
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 32,300 $ 7,300 $ 15,567 $ 8,267
Fund Balances - Beginning 50,570 50,570 50,570
Fund Balances - Ending $ 82,870 $ 57,870 $ 66,137 $ 8,267
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-13
GENERAL FUND - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants $ $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $
Investment Earnings 6,000 6,000 206,891 200,891
Contributions and Donations 4,000 4,000
Total Revenues $ 6,000 $ 56,000 $ 260,891 $ 204,891
Expenditures:
General Government - Other $ 3,755,000 $ 3,825,300 $ 498,345 $ 3,326,955
Total Expenditures $ 3,755,000 $ 3,825,300 $ 498,345 $ 3,326,955
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (3,749,000) $ (3,769,300) $ (237,454) $ 3,531,846
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In $ $ 2,000,000 $ 1,910,469 $ 89,531
Total Other Financing Sources $ 0 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,910,469 $ 89,531
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (3,749,0000 $ (1,769,300) $ 1,673,015 $ 3,442,315
Fund Balances - Beginning 4,139,602 4,139,602 4,139,602
Fund Balances - Ending $ 390,602 $ 2,370,302 $ 5,812,617 $ 3,442,315
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-14
GENERAL FUND - STREET IMPROVEMENT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Investment Earnings $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $ 19,415 $ 17,415
Total Revenues $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $ 19,415 % 17,415
Expenditures:
General Governmental $ 125,000 $ 125,000 $ 120,150 $ 4,850
Total Expenditures $ 125,000 $ 125,000 $ 120,150 $ 4,850
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (123,0000 $ (123,0000 $ (100,735) % 22,265
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In $ $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $
Total Other Financing Sources $ 0 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (123,0000 $ 27,000 $ 49,265 $ 22,265
Fund Balances - Beginning 407,949 407,949 407,949
Fund Balances - Ending $ 284,949 $ 434,949 $ 457,214 $ 22,265

- 86 -



CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-15
GENERAL FUND - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Investment Earnings $ 2500 $ 2500 $ 34,641 $ 32,141
Total Revenues $ 2500 $ 2500 $ 34641 % 32,141
Expenditures:
Current:
Economic Development $ 475945  $ 479,995 $ 350,693 % 129,302
Total Expenditures $ 475945 % 479,995 $ 350,693 $ 129,302
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (473,445) $ (477,495) $ (316,052) $ 161,443
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In $ 150,000 $ 350,000 $ 350,000 $
Total Other Financing Sources $ 150,000 $ 350,000 $ 350,000 $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (323,445) $ (127,495) % 33,948 % 161,443
Fund Balances - Beginning 752,683 752,683 752,683
Fund Balances - Ending $ 429,238 % 625,188 $ 786,631 @ $ 161,443
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Revenue:
Taxes:
Property Taxes and Related Fees
Investment Earnings
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Economic Development
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

©

EXHIBIT C-16
DOWNTOWN TIRZ
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
42,570 42,570 $ 45221  $ 2,651
400 400 3,788 3,388
42,970 42970 $ 49,009 $ 6,039
51,500 61,500 $ 59,697 % 1,803
51,500 61,500 $ 59,697 % 1,803
(8,530) (18,530) $ (10,688) $ 7,842
(6,790) (6,790) $ (6,790) $
(6,790) (6,790) $ (6,790) $ 0
(15,320) (25,320) $ (17,478) $ 7,842
86,489 86,489 86,489
71,169 61,169 $ 69,011  $ 7,842

Fund Balances - Ending
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-17
MAINSTREET GRANT FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants $ $ 2500 $ 2500 $ 0
Total Revenues $ 0o $ 2500 $ 2500 $ 0
Expenditures:
Economic Development $ $ 2500 $ 2500 $ 0
Total Expenditures $ 0 $ 2500 $ 2500 $ 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 0 $ 0 $ 0o $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 0o $ 0o $ 0o $ 0
Fund Balances - Beginning 0 0 0
Fund Balances - Ending $ 0 $ 0o $ 0O $ 0
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-18
DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Taxes
Property Taxes and Related Fees $ 1667960 $ 1,667,960 $ 1,724609 % 56,649
Investment Earnings 1,000 1,000 14,875 13,875
Total Revenues $ 1668960 $ 1668960 $ 1,739,484 % 70,524
Expenditures:
Debt Service: $ 1,756,085 $ 1,756,575 $ 1,753,196 % 3,379
Total Expenditures $ 1,756,085 $ 1,756575 $ 1,753,196 $ 3,379
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (87,125) $ (87,615) $ (13,712) $ 73,903
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (87,125) $ (87,615) $ (13,712) $ 73,903
Fund Balances - Beginning 105,054 105,054 105,054
Fund Balances - Ending $ 17,929 % 17,439 % 91,342  $ 73,903
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-19
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Investment Earnings $ $ $ 69,919 % 69,919
Total Revenues $ 0 $ 0 $ 69,919 % 69,919
Expenditures:
Public Safety $ 1,023,105 $ 2,123,105 $ 2,419,466 $ (296,361)
Public Works 292,560 292,556 4
Recreation and Culture 892,000 630,308 261,692
Total Expenditures $ 1023105 $ 3,307,665 $ 3,342,330 $ (34,665)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (1,023,105) $ (3,307,665) $ (3,272,411) $ 35,254
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In $ $ $ 89531 $ 89,531
Total Other Financing Sources $ 0o 3 0o $ 89,531 % 89,531
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (1,023,105) $ (3,307,665) $ (3,182,880) 3 124,785
Fund Balances - Beginning 3,182,880 3,182,880 3,182,880
Fund Balances - Ending $ 2,159,775 3 (124,785) $ 0o $ 124,785
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT C-20
SPECIAL REVENUE - CLFRF GRANT FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants $ 3,996,08 $ 3,996,085 $ 964,197 $ (3,031,888)
Investment Earnings 22,500 22,500.00 214,151 191,651
Total Revenues $ 4018585 $ 4018585 $ 1,178,348 $ (2,840,237)
Expenditures:
General Government - Other $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 817 $ 39,183
Public Safety 200,000 200,000 101,854 98,146
Public Works 2,508,860 2,508,860 279,674 2,229,186
Health 350,000 350,000 466,665 (116,665)
Recreation and Culture 950,000 950,000 115,187 834,813
Total Expenditures $ 4,048,860 $ 4,048,860 $ 964,197 $ 3,084,663
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (30,275) $ (30,275) $ 214,151  $ 244,426
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (30,275) $ (30,275) $ 214,151 $ 244,426
Fund Balances - Beginning 33,627 33,627 33,627
Fund Balances - Ending $ 3352 % 3352 % 247,778 % 244,426
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PLAINVIEW, TX

explore the opportunities
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE

OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY SOURCE*

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Capital assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Land
Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress

Total

Investment in Capital Assets
Acquired Prior to October 1, 1990
Acquired After September 30, 1990
General Fund
General Revenues
Capital Improvements
Street Improvements
CARES Grant
CLFRF Grant
Economic Development
Capital Projects Fund
General Obligation Bonds
Special Revenue Funds
Hotel-Motel Tax Fund
Police Seizure
PEG Fund
Homeland Security Grant
RSVP Fund
Travis Trussell Duck Pond Grant
TX Cap Fund - Main Street Program
Downtown TIRZ No. 1
SECO Grant
Municipal Court Security Fund
Municipal Court Technology Fund

Total

EXHIBIT D-1
$ 968,064
18,383,692
35,325,002
2,925,819
151,791
$_57,754,368_
$ 10,156,963
2,584,148
4,703,027
7,729,398
83,371
1,117,565
4,655
28,640,500
1,323,113
25,807
246,160
188,240
4,667
530,439
8,058
81,326
29,994
71,941 47,597,405
$__57,754,368

* This schedule presents only the capital assets related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets
reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. However, the capital assets of the
internal service funds are included in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of

net position. Additionally, accumulated depreciation is not included in this schedule.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
EXHIBIT D-3
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN
THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY ACTIVITY*
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Capital Assets Additions Capital Assets
9/30/2022 (Deletions) 9/30/2023
From General Fund
Police $ 1,015,675 $ (34,463) $ 981,212
Fire/EMS 657,480 6,147 663,627
Due from Other Funds 695,148 (30,828) 664,320
Traffic and Safety 201,446 12,796 214,242
Intergovernmental Receivables 167,163 1,195 168,358
Civil Defense 290,664 290,664
Engineering 3,150 (3,150)
Street 7,431,241 9,215 7,440,456
Recreation 906,511 9,248 915,759
Library 461,753 (1,197) 460,556
Health 25,422 (2,803) 22,620
Capital Improvement Fund 4,511,798 191,229 4,703,027
Street Improvement Fund 8,528,546 120,149 8,648,695
CARES Fund 83,371 83,371
CLFRF Grant 418,980 698,585 1,117,565
Economic Development 4,655 4,655
Total General Fund $ 25,403,003 $ 976,123 $ 26,379,126
From Capital Projects Fund
General Obligation Bonds $ 25,520,088 $ 3,120,411 $ 28,640,499
Total Capital Projects Funds $ 25,520,088 $ 3,120,411 $ 28,640,499
From Special Revenue Funds
Hotel-Motel Tax Fund $ 1,107,112 $ 216,001 $ 1,323,113
Police Seizure Fund 19,181 6,626 25,807
PEG Fund 246,159 246,159
Homeland Security Grant 193,633 (5,393) 188,240
RSVP Fund 3,679 987 4,666
Travis Trussell Duck Pond Grant 530,439 530,439
Downtown TIRZ No. 1 8,058 8,058
SECO Grant 82,526 (2,200) 81,326
TX Cap Fund - Main Street Program 225,000 225,000
Municipal Court Security Fund 29,994 29,994

Municipal Court Technology Fund 65,641 6,300 71,941

Total Special Revenue Funds

2,511,422

223,321 %

2,734,743

53,434,513

4,319,855 $

57,754,368

* This schedule presents only the capital assets related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets
reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. However, the capital assets of the
internal service funds are included in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-4
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2020
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Outstanding
Debt
Beginning of
Fiscal Year Year Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 3,695000 $ 460,000 $ 138,600 $ 598,600
2025 3,235,000 485,000 119,700 604,700
2026 2,750,000 500,000 100,000 600,000
2027 2,250,000 520,000 79,600 599,600
2028 1,730,000 555,000 58,100 613,100
2029 1,175,000 575,000 35,500 610,500
2030 600,000 600,000 12,000 612,000
Total $ 3,695,000 $ 543,500 $ 4,238,500
Annual Average Requirements $ 527,857 % 77643 % 605,500
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
EXHIBIT D-5
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND
SUBORDINATE LIEN CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Outstanding

Debt
Beginning of
Fiscal Year Year Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 417,462 $ 293,453 % 11,201 $ 304,654
2025 124,009 124,009 2,170 126,179
Total $ 417,462  $ 13,371 % 430,833
Annual Average Requirements $ 208,731 % 6686 % 215,417
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
EXHIBIT D-6
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND
SUBORDINATE LIEN CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2020
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Outstanding

Debt
Beginning of
Fiscal Year Year Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 1,281,041 $ 148,947 % 62,029 $ 210,976
2025 1,132,094 156,350 54,581 210,931
2026 975,744 164,065 46,764 210,829
2027 811,679 172,652 38,561 211,213
2028 639,027 181,859 29,928 211,787
2029 457,168 190,445 20,835 211,280
2030 266,723 199,280 11,313 210,593
2031 67,443 67,443 2,698 70,141
Total $ 1,281,041  $ 266,709 % 1,547,750
Annual Average Requirements $ 160,130 $ 33339 % 193,469
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-7
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND
CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Outstanding
Debt
Beginning of
Fiscal Year Year Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 235,731 % 43615 $ 9,662 $ 53,277
2025 192,116 45,891 7,482 53,373
2026 146,225 48,168 5,187 53,355
2027 98,057 50,136 3,105 53,241
2028 47,921 37,587 1,438 39,025
2029 10,334 10,334 310 10,644
Total $ 235,731 % 27,184  $ 262,915
Annual Average Requirements $ 39,289 % 4531 % 43,819
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
EXHIBIT D-8
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND
SUBORDINATE LIEN CONTRACT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2023
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Outstanding

Debt
Beginning of
Fiscal Year Year Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 393522 % 108,792 $ 19,838 $ 128,630
2025 284,730 114,221 14,237 128,458
2026 170,509 119,681 8,525 128,206
2027 50,828 50,828 2,541 53,369
Total $ 393522 % 45,141  $ 438,663
Annual Average Requirements $ 98,381 % 11,285 % 109,666
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-9
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND
SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2023
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Outstanding
Debt
Beginning of

Fiscal Year Year Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 10,155,000 $ 205,000 $ 572,314 $ 777,314
2025 9,950,000 325,000 454,075 779,075
2026 9,625,000 340,000 437,450 777,450
2027 9,285,000 360,000 419,950 779,950
2028 8,925,000 380,000 401,450 781,450
2029 8,545,000 395,000 382,075 777,075
2030 8,150,000 415,000 361,825 776,825
2031 7,735,000 440,000 340,450 780,450
2032 7,295,000 460,000 317,950 777,950
2033 6,835,000 485,000 294,325 779,325
2034 6,350,000 510,000 269,450 779,450
2035 5,840,000 535,000 243,325 778,325
2036 5,305,000 565,000 215,825 780,825
2037 4,740,000 590,000 186,950 776,950
2038 4,150,000 620,000 156,700 776,700
2039 3,530,000 650,000 128,200 778,200
2040 2,880,000 675,000 101,700 776,700
2041 2,205,000 705,000 74,100 779,100
2042 1,500,000 735,000 45,300 780,300
2043 765,000 765,000 15,300 780,300
Total $ 10,155,000 $ 5,418,714 $ 15,573,714
Annual Average Requirements $ 507,750 $ 270936 $ 778,686
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-10
DEBT SERVICE FUND
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2018
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
Outstanding
Debt
Beginning of
Fiscal Year Year Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 20,655,000 $ 1,030,000 $ 719,738 % 1,749,738
2025 19,625,000 1,085,000 666,862 1,751,862
2026 18,540,000 1,140,000 611,238 1,751,238
2027 17,400,000 1,195,000 552,863 1,747,863
2028 16,205,000 1,250,000 497,987 1,747,987
2029 14,955,000 1,295,000 453,563 1,748,563
2030 13,660,000 1,335,000 414,112 1,749,112
2031 12,325,000 1,375,000 373,463 1,748,463
2032 10,950,000 1,420,000 331,538 1,751,538
2033 9,530,000 1,465,000 287,347 1,752,347
2034 8,065,000 1,510,000 240,862 1,750,862
2035 6,555,000 1,560,000 191,918 1,751,918
2036 4,995,000 1,610,000 140,406 1,750,406
2037 3,385,000 1,665,000 86,147 1,751,147
2038 1,720,000 1,720,000 29,025 1,749,025
Total $ 20,655,000 $ 5,697,069 $ 26,252,069
Annual Average Requirements $ 1,377,000 $ 373,138 % 1,750,138

- 105 -



PLAINVIEW, TX

explore the opportunities




i

General Information

[

\







129°',07'06 $ 696'025'28 $ 221'9v828 $ _611'658'LL 995'86T'TL 169°982'%9 755'929°29 202'0v6'T9 TIT'0I8'T9 581'669'29 $
YT v.9°6€ ¥98'922'6€ STT'068°SE ¥0L'v.6'0€ Lyv'21e'8e €85°28€'9¢C 08.'6691¢C 280'T26'1¢C 188'Y8Y'Se 129290°9€
8€.L'86€'T §S'292'T 2L2'8TY'T 899'S¥T'C €69's¥0'C 865'€96'T TL6'ESL'T ¥66°Lv9'T 169'S69'T 80t'S6Y'T
crL'vee'6y $  0S9'TEQ'LY $  OVLLES'SY $  LVL'8EL'YY Sradv{y4 0TS‘OvP'9E €08'cez'9e 92T'TLE'SE €€5'629'vE 95V IYT'0E $
99.'T29'€S $ v.¥'/¥S'CS ¢ 212'89T0S $ 06EL10'8Y €G65°000'vY 1.2'669°Ch T2.°99T'0F 92/°'9€5'8E 025'9T6°LE €16'G8C'LE $
€69'06.°0¢C ¥.G5'S¥6'0C 86.°22¢C'6T GES'L6E°LT CLE'GETIT TIS'GTL'ST €G9°ZV6'ET 66¢'98T €T ZE6'6TIEET 916 ¢SV 1T
189'€S. €92'ey. €92'6€L S05'9€.L 896'€E.L 209'TEL Tev'6CL

€,0'1€8'2€ $ 006'T09'TE $  VIV'GY6'0E $  89T°'968'6¢C 816'220°L2 L6V'vve'oe €95°/8¥'Se 6G1°'9T9'v¢C 986'798'cC 995'€0T'2C $
GG8'G8L'9€ $  S6V'EL6'VE $  ST6'2/9'CE $  62L'TI8'6C €10'86T'L2 02v'/80°Ce £€8'605°C¢C 9Lv'E0v'EC T6S°€68'EC CLSETV'OE $
8vi'€88'8T 062'182'8T LT€'/99'9T 69T°LLS'ET SL0'LL6TT 2L0°'299°0T L2T°/S.°0T €8LVELTT SS6'79T'CT S0.'609°T¢
8€.'86€'T §S'292'T 2L2'8TY'T 186'T6€'T 0EY'€0E'T GEE'YCT'T 99%'2T0'T 920'vT6 680'796 116'59.
699'€0S'9T $  0S.'6ZV'ST $  92€'C6SVT $  6.SCTY8VT 80S'LT6'ET €T0°96T°0T 0ve'GeL'0T 199'vS.°0T L¥S'v9.°0T 068'2€0'8 $

€¢0¢ (44014 Tc0e 0c0¢ 610¢ 810¢ L10¢ 910¢ S10¢ ¥10¢

SYV3IA TVOSId NIL 1SV
ININOJINOD Ad NOILISOd 13N

T1-a L1g9IHX3

SVX3L ‘MIIANIVId 40 ALID

uonISOd 18N UBWUIBA0S Arewlld 810
pajsaiun
palouIsay
S19SsY [endeD ul Juswisanu| 19N
juswiuIdn09) Arewid

uonIsod 19N SaANdY adA | -ssauisng |ejo L
palousaiun
pajosay
S1assy [ende) ul Juswisanul 19N
SaNIANOY adA | -ssauisng

UONISOd 19N SSIIANOY [EIUSWIUISAOD) [e10 |
pajosalun
paluIsay
sjessy [ende) ul JuswisaAu| 19N
SBINIAIOY JUBWUIBA0D

- 106 -



€9€'268'VT $  625'029'VT $  6VCTIVE'ET $  6VZ'TLTOT $  C98'6LECT $  TSL'9E6'€T $  €8T'965'CT ¢  ¥0S'6.22T $  €9T'6LV'vT $  6vy'SYOCT
288'G20CT $  ¥9S'96¥'CT ¢  €58'629'TT ¢  26£'SOC'ET $  9€9'2/0'TT $  LIGLZIT'TT $  ¥98'928'0T $  696'0CE'0T $  /8¥'699'0T ¢  9£5'08S'0T
8SC'TIE'T 9/6'6S €60°€EC 0zT'v8

685'CT S66'6¢ 109'0€C 66S'CT
6v9'TT €LG'ET 209's 19¢'e 808'YT 00L'ST €90°CT LE6'TT L18'0T 18L°L
L02'G6E'8 ¥ST'026'8 598'89T'8 121'59€'8 €0T'89L°L 250'606'L 909'229'2 125'1.2'L TLE'LTT'L 166'8EG'L
LEV'909'E $  L€8'CIS'E $  TeE'Ser'e $  ShY've'e ¢ 6vl'6cZ’e ¢ GOT'E6T'E $  GBTC6I'E $  GOG'LEO'E $  L09'S6T'E $  8ES'6Y6'C
18V'T/8'C ¢ ST0'WCT'Cc ¢ 96£'TTL'T ¢ /S8'996'c ¢ 922'/0€'T ¢  ve8'8I8'c ¢  6IE69L'T ¢ SES'8G6'T ¢  9/9'608'C ¢  E€I6VIV'T
SS2'65L S85'vSY S6€'68T S¥.'STe 66.'6 9TL'2eT'T 70T YTELT 9€€'160'C T6S'6T
€50'€86 §29'655 6TE'YSS 6€8'6LY'T eve'LLe 891’12 L18'vYS 6.2'€SS ¥68'62S T08'TLC
9TE'SE SrAWA4 102'1S 79522 eLv'Le 866'LC €02'0S €TE'ZS €2€'1S Ser'oy
¥6T'€0L T0E'veL ¥0.L'€95 S6v'T0T 6.0'0€T 812'2eT G/8'8ET S6S'8TT YT9'6ET TOL'6TT
L19'0vE 868'G6C §19'L62 99€'vvL GEL'0SS 8L9'LEL TI¥'86S YYEYL9 88Y7'99Y 0ST'T8S
986'6Y $ Tev'ey $  20T'sS $ 8v8'Tlov $  L6L'TTIE $  95L'9zy $  Clv'sey $  069'CYS $ T2O'TES $  SvZ'ocy
¥€S'SOC'TE $  Opy'8ey'se $  2ev'68.'22 $  €06'GeE've $  90E'€0T'SC $  cvl'veS'ec $  €cclole’ce ¢ eev'ess’ee $ 9SE'WL6'Te $ LEV'OCT'TC
182°/19'0T $ 0/8'CcT.'8 ¢ ¥6T'6T6'L ¢ T182'S98'8 ¢  298'€/T'6 ¢ 280'/0S'8 $ TEV'806'8 $ G9G'¢6v'6 $ 8€8'006'8 $  v¥e'6ecC'6
8€6'8SY 8€8'Gee 610'0€E
8.6'89 S/S'TS TOL'EY 0S9'v'S 120'0L 628'2S 182'8Y 812'89 215'9¢ 69T'9Y
9¥8'099'9 LLL'6YL'S TOL'€CT'S 280'€6T'9 125'79€'9 8EV'2€09 660°'80€'9 899°'T06'9 OvY'€9€'9 ¥21'592'9
6TS'8er'e ¢  089'G89'c $  €LL'Tev'c ¢  6VS'LT9C $  6TE'6ELC ¢  GTZ'Zev'e ¢ SY0'2SS'C $  619'C2S'C ¢ 988'90S'C ¢ TS6LIVC
€62'886'0c ¢  0/S'STL'9T ¢  8€2'0/8'vT $  229'09Y'GT $  6EV'6C6'ST $ 092'220'ST $  26L'TOV'PT ¢  898'06€vT $  8IS'L90'€T $  E6T'I68'TT
99T'eEL 6€9'218 9G66'€28 ¥02'€SL €G€'/80'T
vIT'v.0'C €02'€EL'T €0T'VE6 S95'0¥2'T 868'C2E'T TOE'0YC'T 95€'012'T €51'982'T 629'612'T 8TZ'STE'T
12V’ L10'T 08z'evL 82.'198 106'8€€ 6,810V 199'20€ 588'78¢€ €L1°06€ €08'ETY 890'62S
66T'0ST'C cry'oLT'e 9G8'29E'T S€9'0TE'T 80€°,82'T 198'8€L'T EYY'0LS'T 6SL°0v9'T ¥76'800'T TET'0S0'T
20S'6TL'0T 9.T'19T'8 6vE€'9GT'8 9G1'€TL'8 652'92.'8 886'96G'L 198'02€'8 192°0L1'8 TST'89T'8 ZrS'652'L
198'€68'c ¢  0€8'v60'E $  9vC'TEL'C ¢  T98'€60'C $  ZPL'E0T'E ¢  EVV'8YPT'Y $  L¥2'SL6'C $  229'C09'C ¢ T20LSZCT $  vETTYLT

€20e 2c0e Tcoe 0202 6102 8102 1102 9102 ST102 102

SYVIA TvOSId N3IL LSV
NOILISOd 13N NI SIONVYHO

¢1-a 119IHX3

SVYX3L ‘MIIANIVId 40 ALID

sanuanay welbold JuswuIano9) Arewlld [elo

uonIsSod 19N SalAdY adA | -ssauisng |ejo |
suonnguiuo) pue syuels rended
suonnguuo) pue suels Bunerado

SUV anesayl

JBM3S pue Jaje\

Juswabeue|y a1sep plloS
S92INIBS 10§ Sebireyd
SONIAIOY 8dA]-ssauisng

sanuaney wWeibolid SeIAIOY [eJUBWUIBA0D [e10 L
suonnquuoY pue sjuels [ended
suonnquiuo) pue sjuels) Bunersado
21MINd pue uonealday
YieaH
Aajes dlqnd
JUSWUIBA0D) [eI8USD
S92INIBS 10§ Sebireyd
SONIAIIY JUSWUIBA0D
SINNIATH NVHO0Hd

UONISOd 19N JUBWUIBA0D Arewtld [eloL

uonIsSoOd 19N SalAdY adA L -ssauisng el
109 wia) BuoT uo s1s0 8auenss| 1gag pue 1salalu|
SUV aneayl
JBM3S pue Jaje
Juswabeuey a1sep plloS
SaNIAIOY 8dA]-ssauisng

sasuadx3 SaNIAIOY [EIUBWUIBA0D [e10 L

1ga@ wiua] BuoT uo s,994 pue 1salaiu|

aIn)ND pue uopesIday

UieaH

SHIOM 2liand

Kiapes aljand

JuawdojaAsQ 2IWOU0dT PUe JUSWUIBA0S) [eIBUSD
SBNIAIOY JUBWIUIBA0D
S3SN3IdX3

- 107 -



259988 ¢ cZ¥8V/9Y $ 800/86% $  €55°0999 ¢ G/8TIF'9 $  998'T9ZC $  <SE9EL $  T60°0ET $ 6v2’'SE9t ¢  B89EBLST ¢
2627.0T 2926LEC 228°02T¢ LE8°9Y0 Y Z8ZT0ET 0552€5¢C G66629'T 902029 JZT'B9ET 078097
09e'2I8'T ¢ 08§'S6C'c ¢ 981'998'c ¢  9TL'€I9Z $  €6S0TT'S ¢ (¥89'0Le) ¢ (ev9'e68) ¢ (STT'O6Y) $  CeTl92'C  $  8SS'8I8 $
€Z8'76T'6T $ €0.28F'ST $ T6TGEYYT $  L02'SI8FT $  6IEGET6T $  LS8'6S8'TT $  <C6EOTSTT $  O020VELTT $  cCvr'OST'TT ¢  9SEVS9'0T ¢
(60€vEE) $ (eevr'vor't) ¢ (L€8'685'T) $  (v.2'e62) $  (L8¥',69) $ (s88'L2) $ (sev'88e) $ (86T'802) $ (czs'vee) $ (c8v'069) $
(160'5€9°T) (18¥'022'T) (282°216'T) (8€T°052) (08¥'68T'T) (LT072€9) (S0Z799) (02€'T09) (LTT7129) (€0L%59)
(L02) T0S'7S S62'€82 9T8'T9 0TO'vL 2€2'9€ (619°05)
796'T8 192'S0T 298'902 GET'9ZT 0TL'€SC GEV'8Y 169°9L
686°00€'T $  8YS'T9C $  0S9'v0T $  006'7.E $ zeL'osy $  0LZ'lve $  918'/8T $  20v's9 $ 826'Tv $ 6YI'se $
Z€T'62S'6T $  GET'/889T $ 820'G209T $  TI8F'8OT'ST $ 9082EL6T $ cvlZ€6'TT $  0€8'86LTT $ 8IZCr6'IT $ ©v96'veSTT $  8E8WWZIT $
160'G€9'T 18v'02LT 28L°116'T 8ET'0G. 087'68T'T (808°09€'T) (9.€v9T1) 02€'T09 [TT'12S
€0.'759
S95'07L'T L¥6'E9Y ¥0.'8T2 98028 111'22€'T 60€'T09 v02'ere 699'G8 G192z 690'L€
06T'LL2 €688 YoT'Zy 280'€9T 805298 709'661'T 9v€'292 09€'€62 679'0vT 109'ST
859'v zsT'92T Z6T'72 260'€€ 000°000'€ 008'92T
166'86€ 5L€'68€ 269'09¢€ 679'0€ 1€8'68€ 0T8'GLE 650°26€ 6£0'6EY 80G'vEY 102's2€
9€2'v19'T 961'955'T €2v'ozr'T 0€9'802'T 06.'G82'T 825'79€'T TV6'vGE'T 670°00€'T 090'G2H'T 1G9'€91'T
92¥'069'G 299'TTT'S 186'208'% €0T'TOE'Y 095'0L2'% GTE'ZS0'Y 129'960'% 987'08T'% 8€9'L£Z'Y 226'v98'E
G/6'290'8 ¢ 62T'0TS'. ¢ 060'8.T'L ¢ TOE'LeS'L ¢ vS8'TIV. ¢ v¥86'YOV'S ¢  622'€8Y'S $  G66'TVO'S ¢ LLE'€elv ¢ €L9'€SlY ¢
(T21'80€'9T) ¢ (198°208°0T) $ (e8T'8vv'6) ¢ (¥S9'vST'8) ¢ (vhv'ecser) ¢ (166'26G6) $ (0v0v2.'0T) ¢ (626'€09'TT) ¢ (€6T'S6Y'L) ¢  (886'720%6) $
109°80%'T ¥69°€8.°E 659°0TL'E TITOVE Y 69.°868'T GEV'0T9C €EV'8T6'T ¥0v'828 679°29L°T 262 TSET
(222'912'2T) ¢ (SSS'T6S'YT) ¢  (cv8'S8ST'ET) ¢  (S9L'v6Y'2T) ¢  (€12'229'vT) ¢ (92v'802'2T) ¢ (€L¥'269'2T) ¢ (eee'zev'el) ¢ (2v8'lSz'6) ¢ (082'92r'0T) $
€202 2202 T20C 0202 6T0C 8T0C /702 9102 GTO0Z ¥102
SYVIA 1vOSId NIL LSV
NOILISOd L3N NI SIONVHO
€1-d LIgIHX3

SVX3L ‘MIIANIVId 40 ALID

uBWUIaN09 Arewd [e10 |

saNAdYy adA | -ssauisng
SBNIAIOY JUBWIUISA0D
NOILISOd L3N NI IONVHO

uBWUIaN09 Arewd [e10 |
sanAoy adA | -ssauisng [e10 |

siajsuel |
S)assy [ende) Jo aes uo (sso) ures
swia)| Areuipioelix3 pue [eloads
Snoaue||adsIN
sbuiure3 usuwisanu|

Sa)AINOY adA | -ssauisng

S3NAIOY [RIUBWUIBA0D [e10 |

slajsuel |
wa)| [eroads
sbBujure juswisanu|
snoaue||92sIN
swreibold oi19ads 10} paldIIsay Jou suonnguiuo)
saxe] layl10
saxe | asiyouely
soxe| sales
soxe] Auadoid
soxe)
SONIAIOY JUBWIUIBA0D

asuadx3 19N WBWUIBA0 Alewllid [e10 |
Sa)AIOY adA | -ssauisng

SaIIAIIDY JUBSWUIBA0D
SANNIAIY/(SISNIdX3) L3AN

- 108 -



8T9'6G0'T $ P/L'€2T'T $ 6€8'¥%.2T $ 98LVI€'T ¢ OEV'EOE'T $ 968'9T2'T $  TI¥'/80'T $ 920'SO'T ¢ 680'%96 ¢  L26'G9. ¢
S¥6'69 000°0VT
TT0'69 681'98 8EV'LTT 821'09T G20'vST 000'0ST
LET'99 0.5'0S 08T'STZ 018'2ve 068'€02 9€G'T9T 2.8'T2T 20528 908'TS TEE'TT
7v0'L2 78€'LT 598'0T v0L'y
9.0'8S 962'€S 08Z'9% 8€8'89 vIv'9g §59'GY TG.2'9€ §60'9€ 18.'0€ 1€1'1Y
090'25 688'TY 095'GE 26€'85 192'Ly G8T'6€ 299'€€ 0el'lz 2€0'€e 250'ST
195'6
29T €or'y v6L'L §6€'L 6GS'T €86’ €72'9T 292’y Sledod €02'59
195022 $ €v.'698 ¢ ZzL'T¥8 ¢ 69v'CLL $ GlZ'OV8 ¢ L€6'9T8 $  8EV'808 le¥'Se. ¢ ve0'608 ¢ vS9'Se9 ¢
8.L'\vC $ Lz9'te $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 $
8.L'/vc $  Lz9'ee $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Zre'16 $ ¥SO'GSOT  $  EEV'EPT  $  Gve'LL $ (6SL'6) $ BEVL $ 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 $
(652°6)
ZreE'T6 $ ¥S0'S0T $ e€ev'evT ¢ S¥C'LL $ $ 6EVL $ $ $ $
0 $ 08828T'E $ GTIO'GLT'ST$ L2/'T68'0C $ G26'0€8'€Z $ 6EE2ECSZ $ O 0 $ 0 $ 0 $
$ 088%28T't $ GTIO6LTST $ LZL'168°0c $ GC60€8EC $ 6EEcCECSC $ $ $ $

¥86'TEQ'6T $ L08'8G0'8T $ €E¥'6/8'LT $ 2ES'GAE'LT $ 129'2/29T $  6EBOEV'ST $  659'988'GT T.V'v¥8'ST $  €5€'9/6'ST $  960'vEL'ST $
VS VLY'CT 102'8/9°CT /GE08EVT 0G8VSEVT 009°009°€T 9V L6EET €0G'80V'E€T T2E'898°CT /¥9'0S6'CT 082'695¢T
9819502 9G6'662'S 79.'6TH'E 96T'096'C §/G'8T9'C 910'266'T 506'62'C §€2'L26'C 219'L16'C 0S6'GTT'E
GGZ'T0OT $  ¥¥9'08 $ CZIE6L $ 98v'08 $  OvY'es $ L0V $ 1528y ST6'8Y $ ve0'sy $ 9988y $

€202 2202 1202 0202 6102 8102 1102 9102 G102 ¥10Z

SYV3IA TVOSId NIL LSV
SANNZ TYLINIWNYIAOD - STONVIVE ANNA

¥T-a LIgIHX3

SVYX3L ‘MIIANIVId 40 ALID

SpuN4 [BIUBWIUIBA0D J8YIO [V [€10L
puod 3onq [|9ssn.L SIAel] 10} paubissy

pund zy|L umoumog
pund 93d

pun4 uoISIBAIQ uonuanald Aoueni L
pun4 894 ABojouyda | UNoD

pun4 894 ANdas UnoD
pung ainyayo4 [eiapa-
pun4 8inz19s a8dljod
pun4 ueo Buinjorsy

pun4 Aouednd2Q |910N-|810H
:Spun4 anuaAay [eldads ul pauoday ‘palouIsay
Spun4 [eIUBWUIBA0D JBYIO IV

pun4 anuanay [eloads [ejo |
pejulsey
pun4 anuanay [eloads

pund 821A18S 198 [el0L
paubisseun
pejusey

pund 82IA18S 1920

pun4 sjosloid [ended eyoL
pajulsey
pun4 sjosloid ended

pund [eJaue9 [ejoL
paubisseun
paubissy
a|gepuadsuoN

pund [eiaus9

- 109 -



%8E'6 %986 %80T %IV TT %TLTT %00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %00°0
(ozv'esv't) ¢ (8.52.6'TT) ¢ (0cSeoz'e) ¢ (226°21.1) ¢ (962°06V) $  EWPET6VC $  €LG'GL $  (Sv6'TY) $ 69€0PF $ EVB'EO0T $
L/0'€9S'T ¢ 2ZOC'TOS'T ¢ 82€'98¥'T ¢ SSE'0EE ¢ 68€'GLL  $  0/5'9S0'0Z $  T¥8'69S ¢ T80'00S  $ OSK'¥89 $  8ZE9ve ¢
1.0T9V'T 087'GES'T 1€2°€8Y'T GGE'0EE 68E'GLL 10G'795 Tv8'695 T80°00S 0S5V 789 82€'9VC
000°'20T zel'se T60°'€
€90'2v.
$ $ $ $ $ 000'0S.'tvC $ $ $ $ $

(z6v'9g0'e) ¢ (08L'ceseT) ¢ (878'889'9) ¢ (zeesv0e) $ (589°'692°T) ¢ (LeTewrTT) ¢ (B9cvey) ¢ (9z0evs) ¢ (T80Wv2) &  GT92G.  $
€12'TT¢'€c $ PITer/'0E $ 926'90.'2¢ $ T9Z'T80'6T $  /¥2'8TC' T $ ¢6L'8GL°'GT $ 029'2/0VT $ /Z66S9'€CT $ €6CVI0ET $ 6SOVIETT $
€VS'2IS'Y T9.'T.G'CT 896'000'9 €€0'90L'€ 88G'¢/2'C T0€2L9 LTL'8EL 125'686 Z6v'CTIT'T 9/2'/9T
96T'€LL 9€/'6G8 280'998 098'806 ¥0v'662'T
000°'086 000'GE6 000588 000'Gv8 00005
£VE'SYS'T 02T'eSP'T 622'26E'T Zry'60T'T 96G'/ST'T 20T'ore'T €6T'060'T 6TS'TIT'T 086'7S0'T 6TS'OVT'T
80.'TS6 8€€'66. €16'968 YS1'€GE 670'96€ $9€'18€ €€E' L0V vz8'6Le 00€'TOY ¥08'69€
0€L'8TS'T 196'T28'T §0.'020'T 6L9'T€6 ¥G5'006 1G8'9€0'T 182'TVe'T GT9'6E0'T €TT'¥89 295'108
221'008'6 128'181°'6 108'908'8 0v6'85€'8 096'76.'L 186'L¥6'L €18'02.'L 099'8€9°/2 920'TEY'L 060°'560°2
T/6'82T'E  $ T/E'eeT'e  $ 89T'8E8'T $  €58.98'C ¢  960'0S6'Cc $  I8T'WLY'Y $  L/TW/8T $  88L'00SCT $  ¢8E'0EET $  8OB'EELT ¢
9T.'v/T'0Z $ PEE'80Z'.ZT $ 8L0'BTO'9T $ 626'2€0°LT $ 2¢95'2S6'ST $ G99'GTOPT ¢ 2GE'8LG'€ET $ TOGLIT'ET $ 2T20.22T $  #/9'T.02T $
0S7'S0T 1G2'99 112'8Y 2868V 9TV'6V €66'¢8 889'79¢C vEV'EVT 6T VET /0T°.8T
8G9t 2sT'9zT 26T've 70079 L76'6T 8€9'08 £96'9 976 906'.€ €/8'8T
009 009 009 009 00S 00S 525 005 005 09¢
9v1'06€'T 00S'8.€ €21'18T 122'969 ZVEVIT'T 60€'709 1€€'G8T 699'8 ST9'2Y 690°'2€
€€9'T62 G612 TT0'IEC 82¥'0S€ 2T1'88¢ Lv6'9vE TET'LGE T80 Ly Tv9'STY 688'09€
¥26'85. 0€S'T9. 86€'LG. §/5'G58 508869 Tv1'288 180218 z8g'se8 SZh'ov9 86v'7EL
80€'CyL'T T9Z'7T0'T YIL'EVL 085'T€9'T 96T°L9¢ 8EL'TEE'T 258'L€S v2e'ors 8€0'€ZS 82¥'85¢
680'09 982'68 661'€0T GT9'G9 086'69 295's8 958'06 08T'T0T zer'1et 69%'9L
80E'08L'ST $  €52'0SS'YT $  V¥96'LC6'€T $  8IG'6TE'ET $  ¥I6'€6C'ET $  L€8'20C'TT ¢  SC6LTE'TT $  0L6'8v6'0T $  905'8v8'0T $  T86'L6E'0T $

€202 z20e 1202 020z 6102 8T0C LT0Z 9702 ST0C 7102

SYVIA TVOSId NIL LSV
SANNH TVINIWNYIAOD - SIONVIVE ANN4 NI STIONVHO

GT-A LIgIHX3

SVYX3L ‘MIIANIVId 40 ALID

sainypuadx3 [eydesuoN
Jo abejuadlad e se SavIAIRS 1993

saoueleg pund ul 8buey) 18N

(sasn) sa2inos Buioueul4 18yiQ [e1o0L
(INO) u| sisysuel] 1BN
sjassy [ende) Jo aes ay) woly spasdoid
90UBNSS| puog Wolj wnjwald
Spaasold puog

(S3SN) S3DUNOS ONIONVNIZ YIHLO

sainypuadx3 (Japun)IaAQ SBNUBAY JO SSBIX]

SaNUaAay welbold SaIANDY [BIUBWUIBA0D) [e30 L
Kepno ended
S99 paje[ay pue 1sala|
fediould
92IM8S 198d
aInyND pue uonealday
uireaH
S0 dliand
Kiapes oljand
Juawdoj@Aa@ 21WOU0IT pue JUSWUIBAOS) [elaua)
S3IFNLIANIAX3

SaNUBA3Y [e101
SanuaAly I1BYl0
suolreuo pue suonngiuod
sapneloy pue sjuay
sBulure3 juswisanu|
saul4
S32IAISS 10} sabiey)d
_mEmE:‘_m>Om‘_wE_
S)HWIad pue sasuadl
(9T-Q 99S) sexe L

S3INN3IATY

1
o
-—
—



CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-16
TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year Property Sales & Use Franchise Occupancy Mixed Beverage Total
2014 $ 4,744,195 $ 3,864,922 $ 1463657 $ 296,899 $ 28,308 $ 10,397,981
2015 4,751,300 4,237,638 1,425,060 391,324 43,184 10,848,506
2016 5,029,096 4,180,786 1,300,049 406,734 32,305 10,948,970
2017 5,469,298 4,096,627 1,354,941 358,356 38,703 11,317,925
2018 5,410,184 4,052,315 1,364,528 346,078 29,732 11,202,837
2019 7,347,777 4,270,560 1,285,790 352,323 37,514 13,293,964
2020 7,505,536 4,301,103 1,208,630 282,545 22,104 13,319,918
2021 7,343,868 4,802,981 1,389,660 360,692 30,763 13,927,964
2022 7,492,720 5,111,662 1,556,496 353,642 35,733 14,550,253
2023 8,016,655 5,690,426 1,674,236 361,011 37,980 15,780,308
Change%
2014-2023 69% 47% 14% 22% 34% 52%
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-17
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Less: Total Taxable Total Direct
Residential Commercial Industrial Tax-Exempt Assessed Tax Rate
Fiscal Year Property Property Property Property Value Per $100
2014 $ 575,850,019 209,670,673 $ 96,690,063 128,572,126 753,638,629 0.6185
2015 580,460,871 225,574,773 97,012,823 131,372,562 771,675,905 0.6038
2016 597,215,014 233,512,357 100,895,044 140,666,810 790,955,605 0.6288
2017 617,213,425 251,995,782 137,616,180 146,493,021 860,332,366 0.6288
2018 625,609,457 258,140,533 125,971,290 148,727,007 860,994,273 0.6312
2019 636,118,514 266,393,784 121,523,202 152,814,672 871,220,828 0.8318
2020 645,606,242 295,626,661 94,102,655 154,232,885 881,102,673 0.8418
2021 686,393,907 224,114,623 106,442,552 155,354,138 861,596,944 0.8418
2022 666,174,352 257,699,264 107,922,679 161,544,864 870,251,431 0.8518
2023 782,049,877 285,317,825 119,000,480 210,080,572 976,287,610 0.8165
Source: Hale County Appraisal District
Note: Property in Hale County is reassessed once every three years on average.

State statute requires all property to be appraised at 100% of assumed market value. The
tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-18
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
City Direct Rates Per $100 Overlapping Rates Per $100
General Plainview
Obligation Total Independent High Plains
Operating Debt Direct School Water Hale
Fiscal Year & Maintenance Service Rate District District County
2014 $ 0.61850 % $ 0.61850 $ 1.04000 $ 0.00810 $ 0.49210
2015 0.60380 0.60380 1.04000 0.00826 0.49210
2016 0.62880 0.62880 1.04000 0.00826 0.49210
2017 0.62880 0.62880 1.17000 0.00750 0.50790
2018 0.63120 0.63120 1.17000 0.00690 0.59550
2019 0.63120 0.20060 0.83180 1.17000 0.00670 0.59550
2020 0.63120 0.21060 0.84180 1.06835 0.00630 0.61800
2021 0.63120 0.21060 0.84180 1.35470 0.00550 0.63300
2022 0.65120 0.20060 0.85180 1.65470 0.00510 0.64300
2023 0.64000 0.17650 0.81650 1.35470 0.00469 0.63500
Source: Hale County Appraisal District
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

EXHIBIT D-22
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Percentage
General Certificates of Actual
Obligation of Obligation Taxable Value
Fiscal Year Bonds Bonds Total of Property Per Capita
2014 $ $
2015
2016
2017
2018 24,750,000 24,750,000 2.87% 1,115.17
2019 24,300,000 24,300,000 2.79% 1,094.89
2020 23,455,000 23,455,000 2.66% 1,056.82
2021 22,570,000 22,570,000 2.62% 1,118.05
2022 21,635,000 21,635,000 2.49% 1,071.73
2023 20,655,000 20,655,000 2.12% 1,023.18
Notes: Detail regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

See Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property for property value data.
See Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for Population Data.
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS
EXHIBIT D-23

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Estimated Share

of Direct
Estimated Percentage and Overlapping
Government Unit Debt Outstanding Applicable Debt
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes
Plainview Independent School District $ 61,565,000 86.91% $ 53,506,142
County of Hale 38.62%
Other Debt
Plainview Independent School District 65.03%
County of Hale 41.71%
Subtotal Overlapping Debt $ 53,506,142
City Direct Debt 20,655,000
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 74,161,142
Sources: Assessed Value data used to estimate percentages provided by Hale County Appraisal District.
Debt Outstanding provided by each government unit.
Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This

Schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents
and businesses of the City. This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term
debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.

-118 -



‘'sasuadxa uoneziuowe Jo ‘uoirerdaldap 1Sa1aiul puog apnjoul Jou op sasuadx3 BuiresadO
'S1S09 8INS0|d 1s0d pue 8Inso|d ||IIpuUEB| 8inINy 10} [eniode pue apnjoul sasuadx3 BuneladO
'sSsaupalgapul Aluoyiny Jare A\ redisiunpy JaAly ueipeue) Jo areys areuoiodold s, 1D ayl uo sjuawAed [enuue ayl sapnjoul sasuadx3 Buneliado

"SluswWwiale)s [eloueUl) 8yl 01 S310U BYI Ul punoy aq ued 1gap Buipueisino s,A1D ay) Buipsebal jreieg :S9I0N

8T6'L.T 6TS'82ZY'E LEV'909°E ov'e 219'862 000'Gey TOEVEL'T 9¥8'099‘9 102'56€'8 €c0e

/ST'/28 089'G89‘¢ 1€8'2TG'e 90'S 8€8'Gee 000°'0T¥ 11€'022'e 111'6V1'S ¥S1'0.6'8 ¢c0c

8T9'€00'T €11'Tev'e T6E'SeY'E [ANA 6T0'0EE 000'SOT'T ¥91'Sv0'e TOL'€2T'S G98'89T'8 Tc0z

8vY'IVE'T 00T'€E6'T 8vS'v.2Z'e GG'¢C 0v.'88T 000'STT'T geg'see'e T00'260‘S 9€2'LTV'8 0c0c

686'€9T'T T8T'E0T'C 0.1'292'€ 81T TT1'59¢2 000'060'T GE.L'687'¢C 660'62E'S ¥€8'818'. 6T0C

916'2/2'T LVV'TL6'T €96'cvZ'e 96'T T199'662 000°0S0‘T ¥88'G¥79‘C €9¢'7T0€'S YAZAVAZL WA 8T0¢

€TL'9ve'T 2.€'766'T G80'8€¢'E VLT 9ev'1EE 000'STO'T 968'9ve‘e 0S0'€SE'S 906'669°/L 1102

6S9'6TT'T 90%'996‘T G90'980‘€ 1¢T 9€8'09¢ 000'G66 0TO'LE9'T 199'6€8‘S 119'9.V°L 9T0¢

8¢’S 88¢'v 000'Sve TG6'6EE'T 891'688'T 6T1'622'E 8sy'T ¥20'88¢€ 000'G96 GG/'€00°C ov.'lee's S61'1€2'.L ST0C

65V $ G2/.'2T $ 000'0vc $ £28'09T'T $ 9IV'/¥8'T $ €v2'800'c $ GE'T $ 6VT'ETV 000056 $ G6C'cv8'T ¢ 8IV'CTL'S $ €ETL'GGS. 10¢
abelano)  1salau| rediouid anuanay sasuadx3 sanuandy  abelano)d 1sa.91u| rediound anuanay sasuadx3 Sanuanay JTeaA [essiq

92IMISS 1990 a|qe|reny 18N Bunesado Bunelado 92INISS 1090 a|ge|reny 19N Bunerado Bunelado
'ss9 Ain 'ss9 Aiinn
spuog anuanay juawabeue|y a1sep pljoS spuog anuaAay Jamas pue Iarepn

SHVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
FOVIINO0D INNIATH d3Od31d
¥¢-a 11dIHX3
SVX3AL ‘MIIANIVId 40 ALID

-119 -



"3|ge|reArUN SI £20Z JeaA fepuajed Jo) Blep awooul [euoslad :S9JON
"10L1SIQg |00YdS uapuadapu|
M3IAUTR|d pUe ‘Sule|d UYINOS ‘SUoin|oS 99J0PI0 AN ‘UOISSILLWOYD 92I0PI0MN SEXa] ‘1alua) ere a1els sexa] ‘sisAjeuy dlwouodd Jo neaing :$92In0S
%T'S Sve'v VIN VIN zes'ee 18T'0C €c0¢
7% GT9'V £eg'oy 000°/86'22€'T zes'ee 18T'02 (4404
%0°S AWM % 8ET'EY 000°€6'20V'T zes'ee 18T'0C Tc0c
%E’L 9z8'v 226'vE 000'TE€L'992'T €12'9¢ v6T'ce 0c0¢
%0'% €02's L18'C€E 000°L9€'06T'T €/2'9¢ v6T'CC 610¢
%'V 2se's 060°0€ 000'09%7‘T60°T €12'9¢ v6T'ce 810¢
%T'V 6TG'S ¥06'62 000°'T0L'¥80'T €12'9¢ v61'2C LT0¢
%€E’'S 98G'S G82'0¢ 000°2TS'860'T €12'9¢ v6T'ce 910¢
%S 659'S €T.'6C 000°'TL.'210'T €/2'9¢ v61'2C STO0C
%€'9 6SG'S 078'6¢ 000°262'180'T €l2'9e v61'CC ¥10¢
aley juswijjoiug awodu| awoou| uone|ndod uoire|ndod Jea [eoasiH
juswAo|dwaun Jooyoss [euosiad [euosiad Auno) Ao
Auno) ende) Jad Auno)
Auno)
SHVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
ONIANV1SLNO 193d dIdNO4d Tvd3aINIO 40 SOIlvd
G2-a 11gIHX3

SVX3L ‘MIIANIVId 40 ALIO

-120 -



2014

CITY OF PLAINVIEW, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2015

2016

EXHIBIT D-26

2017

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

2018

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

2019

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

2020

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

2021

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

2022

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

2023

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

Notes:

Sources:

Azteca Milling

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Distribution Center
Wal-Mart Stores

Wayland Baptist University

Employers are not listed by rank. The number of employees are not listed due to confidentiality.

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

Azteca Milling

Central Plains MHMR Center

City of Plainview

Covenant Hospital

Hale County

Plainview ISD

Texas Department of Criminal Justice
United Supermarkets

Wal-Mart Associates

Wayland Baptist University

Texas Workforce Commission, Workforce Solutions South Plains, and Plainview/Hale County EDC.
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PLAINVIEW, TX

explore the opportunities




Compliance and Internal
Control







BOLINGER, SEGARS, GILBERT & Moss, L.L.P.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
PHONE: (806) 747-3806

FAX: (80O6) 747-3815
8215 NASHVILLE AVENUE

LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79423-1954

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

City Council
City of Plainview, Texas
Plainview, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Plainview, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Plainview, Texas’ basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Plainview, Texas’
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Plainview,
Texas’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Plainview, Texas’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

However, material weaknesses and significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Plainview, Texas’' financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

5‘*6%47-0\, /57«»»4—/ W?"WA«_ AL P

Certified Public Accountants

Lubbock, Texas

March 15, 2024
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